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Renort on the Financial Stalements

We lrave audited the accornpanying financial statemetrts of Infinity Microfinance Bank Limiled

("the Microfinance Bank'), which comprise the slatement of financial position s at 1

December, 2021, the statement of comprehensive income, changes in eqrLrty, statement of c ll

flows for tlre year ended 3 l December, 2021, surnrnary of sigrificant accounting polictes alC

other explanatory infortnation set out on pages 22 to 6?.

Directors' Resnonsibiliw for the Financial Statemenls

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that giYes a 1;Le

and fair view in accordance with lnternational Financial Reporting Standards ([FRS) and irr

nrisstalelnent whelher due to fmud or error

exPress an opinion on these financial statenlents based on our

r audit in ascordatrce rvith [trternationaI Starldards on Auditing'
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and pJan and

perfornr the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statenlents -, e

ll ee fr om material misstatetrtent.

An audit invotves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the anrounts

and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend or1 the

audilor,sjudgment, including the assessment ofthe risks ofmaterial nrisstalenrent of the

finanCial staternents, whether due tO fraud or error. In making those risk assesstnelits.

the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are

appropriate in lhe circumstances, but not lor the purpose of expressing an opinion on

tlre efiectiveness of the entity's internal control

An audit also includes evalualing the appropriateness ofaccounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estilnates nrade by the directols, as well as evaluating tlte

overall presentation of the financial stateulents,

We believe that tlre audit evidence we have obtained is sufticient and appropriate to

provi,.lc a basis for our audit opinion
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2020

II our opiuion, proper books ofaccount llave been kept by lufinity Microfinance Bank Lirnited,

so far is appears lrorn our exarnination of those books and the Colnpany's Stltement of
Financial Poiitiorr and Stntenlent ofCornprehensive lnconre are in agreement rvith tlre books ci
accounts
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INFINITY MICROX'INANCE BANK LIMITED
CHAIRMANS STATEMENT FOR YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Distinguished shareholders, ladies and gentlemen, it is my pleasure to welcome you all to the

Fifteenth Annual General Meeting of Infinity Microfinance Bank Limited and to present to you the

Financial Statements of Infinity Microfinance Bank Limited for the year ended 31 December 2021.

KEY ECONOMIC HIGHLIGTS OT'THE YEAR

The common thread that wove through the year is slow economic recovery amid the persistence of
the Covid-I9 pandemic as business pushed ahead on the recovery efforts and began shifting toward
sustainable growth in a new normal world, while authorities push for greater inclusivity of
vaccination. Business environment and financial services business was dominated with renewed

push for digitalization and adjusting to the realities of the post-pandemic era.

The natioffbegan the new year amid worries over its inflation figures and its ripple effects on the

standard of living of the average Nigerian. According to the Consumer Price Index report released

by the National Bureau of Statistics (NBS). Inflation rose to 18.t7% from 17.33o2 recorded in
February 2021 and stood at 18.12 per cent. The Bureaureportedthat inNovember202l Nigeria's
inflation rate fell for the eighth consecutive month to 15.40 per cent from 15.99 per cent recorded in
October.

On the macro-economic level, the National Bureau of statistics announced that the Nigerian
economy had exited its second recession in five years in February 2021by a slight growth of 0.11

percent. The World Bank con'oborated the reports and projected that Nigeria's real GDP will
rebound from a 1.8 percent contraction in202} to moderate growth of 1.4 percent in202l. It said

this will be driven by telecommunications services, trade due to gradual opening of borders,

agriculture, and construction. It also stated that consumer spending and business investment are

likely to remain subdued in 2021 because double-digit inflation, high unemployment, and the slow
rollout of the COVID-I9 vaccine will weigh on households' real income and business confidence.

Though the Federal government had stated its commitment to tackling unemployrnent and moving
100 million out of poverty in I 0 years and claimed that 10,5 million had been moved out of poverty

in 2 years, the world Bank had reported that fresh 7.5 million had been plunged back into poverly

due to high inflation. The Nigerian National Bureau of Statistics had stated in2020 that 40% or 83

million Nigerians live in poverty. Although Nigeria's poverty profile for 2021 has not yet been

released, it is estimated that the number of poor people will increase to 90 million,

On public Debt, the Debt Management Office published Nigeria's Total Public Debt as at

September 30, 2O2L The Data, which includes the Total External and Domestic Debts of the

Federal Government of Nigeria, thirty-six State Governments and the Federal Capital Territory,
shows that Nigeria's Public Debt was N38.005tn at the end of Q3 2021. Out of this debt stock,

N15.58 trillion was accwnulated in the first nine months of 2021. 'Ihe IMF in its publication stated

that the country's debt-to-GDP ratio would increase from 35.7 percent in 202lto 36.9 per cent in
2}2}.Consequent on the Country's rising debt profile, debt servicing cost escalated to N2.49 trillion
in first 9 months in202l Details in the final copy of the 2022budget showed that out of the total

budget of N17.1 trillion, over 22 per cent, estimated at N3.8 trillion will be spent on debt servicing

while N6.9 trillion is budgeted for recurrent expenditure and N5.4 trillion is budgeted for capital

expenditure
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On the value of the Naira" Nigeria had consistently devalued its currency on a yearly basis in the
offlrcial market since the zAl\lzArc recession. In 2016, it was devalued to N253 from N192 in 2015.
It dropped to N305.8 in20l7, N306.1 in 2018, N306.9 in2019, then to N379.8 in2020 and fi.rrther
down to N414 in202l.Ot unemployment, the country's unemployment rate has more than tripled.
The National Bureau of Statistics reported that Nigeria's unemployment rate rose to 33.3 per cent,
translating to some 23.2 million people in March 2022.

A YEAR OF SLOW RECOVERY AND INSTABILITY

Although Nigeria had its fair share of the gradual recovery from the global economic recession
necessitated by the Covid-I9 pandemic, recovery was generally slow because most of the nations are
still affected by the variants of the Pandemic, especially the Delta variant in the first half of the year
and the Omicron variant in the second half of the year. Several countries placed travel ban and
restrictions on many African countries to limit the spread of the variant. This move had limiting
effect on{re movement of people and goods and affected key sectors like transportation, tourism,
and hospitality. However, the eoonomic activities improved steadily through the year as educational,
entertainment, sports, trade and corrrmerce moved toward the Pre-Covid era steadily. The Nigerian
economy recovered from the COVID-Ig-induced recession with a positive growth of 0.5o/o,50/o and
4Yo in the flrrst, second and third quarters of 202 respectively. The huge spike in second and third
quarter was partly due to rebasing.

Despite the gradual spike in economic activities, total foreign investment inflows into Nigeria had
remained low; Investment inflows was US$875 million in 2021Q2 - the lowest quarterly inflow
since 2016Q1.Foreign Direct Investment inflow in2021Q2 was US$78 million, even lower than
2020Q2. Key hurdles to the investment climate remain macroeconomic instability, policy
inconsistency, inadequate infrastructure, insecurity and tough business climate. Crude oil continued
to dominate exports, accounting for 80% of total export.

External reseryes trended upwards following higher oil prices. However, weaker foreign investment
inflows, high demand for foreign currency to finance imports and other needs and possible clearance
of FX backlogs are factors that continue to weaken External Reserves. Federal Government
expenditure was also increasing at a faster pace than revenue. While overall expenditure has grown
by 102% from N5 trillion to N10.1 trillion between 2015 and 2020, revenue increased by just 15%.
Though Nigeria's debt/GDP at 35Yo appears comfortable, debt service to revenue at 97.7Yo between
Jan and May 202lsuggests that Nigeria's debt is already unsustainable.

OPERATING ENVIRONMENT DT]RING THE YEAR

Although Nigeria's economy recovered from its economic recession in Q4 2020 following two
consecutive quarters of negative movement in the country's GDP, the economy stil struggled to
reach pre-pandemic levels in 2021. This is due to galloping inflationary pressure, rising
unemployment rate, surging debt proflle, continuing exchange rate quagmire. The revenue
problem had persisted during the year, unemployment rate peaked at 33% and debt spiked to
N3B trillion. 0ther indicators include continuous negative trade balance and declining foreign
investment.

A closely related national challenge is the problem of insecurity. According to the Minister of
Information, 2021 has seen a significant leap in Nigeria's security challenges with banditry,
kidnappings, and herders-farmers killing leading the pack. He also mentioned that combination of
kinetic and non-kinetic operations, coupld with a review of strategies, led to the neutralization of



over 1,000 terrorists, rescue of 2,000 civilians andthe surrender of over 22,000 terrorists including

their families. A data consulting firm, Beacon, has revealed that no fewer than8,372 people lost their

lives to security challenges in Nigeria in 2021,North West suffered the highest with 3,051 deaths,

followed by the North-East with 1,895 casualties, North-Central 1,684 victims, South-East 853,

South-South 448 and South-West 441.

Related to the issue is the rising cases of criminal kidnapping for money which has grown to become

another grave concern to the government and society at large. The year is dotted with constant news

of ransom-collecting criminals that seem to have turned kidnapping to the latest money-spinning

'venture'. The target ranges from students of educational institutions to community heads, high net

worth individuals, aged parents and many more. Though the criminal activities were more rampant

in the Northem parts of Nigeria in the earliest part of the year, latest trends show that the activities

are becoming increasingly noticeable in the middle belt and southern states. The spate of these

criminal gctivities' portents great danger and ri business and societal peace.

Consequ&ly, businisses have to spend more on According to BGI, a leading

research consultancy group, an average of 13 pers aily in Nigeria in the first half
of 2021, bringing to 2,371 the number of persons kidnapped in the country within the first six

months of the year. According to the report, N10 billion was demanded as ransom forthe kidnap

victims.

Despite the daunting challenges of the year, the Nigerian Banking Sector have shown strong

resilience in the face of endemic and pandemic constraintsin202l, both in terms of profitability

asset quality and growth in key indices. The Financial Services industry have generally shown great

adaptability in the embracing digital banking and payment services. Some of the leading Deposit

Money Banks have embraced the Holding Company Structwe so they can provide more inclusive

services in insurance, capital markets, banking, insurance, pension, capital market and government

sectors. In order to drive the financial inclusion goals of the Federal Government, the Central Bank

of Nigeria have granted the Mobite Money Operator and Payment Service Banks in202l. Many of
the Banks and Telecommunication and Fintech companies are early birds in the bourgeoning market

having seen great potential it holds for the future.

Distinguished shareholders, yotr will recall that the Central Bank of Nigeria in the wake of the

Covid-l9 Pandemic extended the deadline for the recapilalizatron of Micro-finance Banks to April
2022. This was clue to the negative impact of the Pandemic on the economy and small and medium

businesses. Except there are last minutes changes, Apnl2022 is the set day for State Microfinance

Bank like Infrnity Microfinance Banks I-imited to upgrade their share capital from minimum of
N100 million to minimum of One Billion Naira, while National Microfinance Banks are to increase

their Minimum Shareholders fund from One Billion Naira to Five Billion Naira. Infinity
Microfinance Bank have laid our recapitaliz.ation plan to the Central Bank of Nigeria and we are

confident that Infinity Microfinance Bank will be approved as a Microfinance Bank with
Shareholders fund in excess of One Billion Naira.

Globally, the financial services industry has come urder intense competition from agile and

innovative fintech firms leveraging on technology to deliver tailored financial service offerings to

consumers and coqporates and Nigeria is not an exception. The need to develop a robust regulatory

structure for the fintech sector in Nigeria has become topical. Cumently, the Central Bank of Nigeria

and the Nigeria Communication Commission have been providing oversight for certain segments of
the fintech sector in the country, though arnbiguities still exist in the extant laws which need to be

addressed. With a huge population of tech sawy populatiorr, increasing smart phones and internet

penetration, large unbanked population, the landscape of Microfinance Banking is set to witness



more fintech disl-rptions. ln the last 5 ),ears flntech investments have soared immensely ancl nerv
players are offering fresh competilion in existing and ner,v niche segrnents.

Nigeria is nolv home to over 200 fintech standzrlone companies, plus a number of fintech solutions
offered by bantris and rnobile netrvork opcrators as part of theil product portfolio. Between 2014 ancl

2019. Nigeria's bustling llntech scene raised ruore than $600 million in funding, attracting 25

percent ($tZZ rnillion) ol'the $491.6 nrillion raiseci by Ali'ican tech startups in 2019 alone, second
only to l(enya, which attractccl $l-19 milliori. Infinity lvlicrofinance Bank rvill continue to make

strategic investments in the Fintech space rvliile not loosing sight of our traditional markets. We are=

cletermined to lirse the convenience that lintech solutions bting into banking to every aspect of our
existing business and tc-r reach out 1i.r ncrv market segments.

FUTURE CHALLENGES AND OI'PORTUNITIES

Reelingp"ut of the devastation of Covid-19 in the year 2020, the year 2021 have been a year to build
up and slowly recover from the daunting challenges and lost opportunities tossed on the market b1'

the pandemic and get back our growth trajectory. At Infinity Microfinance Bank Limited, we see

opportunities in the Post Covid-I9 dispensation. We have been working with our customers to
remodel and adapt their businesses and manage new risks in the emerging business environment,
Though the macro-economic challenges and insecurities have been enormous, we have supported the

businesses of our custorners and prepared ourselves for new opportunities in the years ahead. it4ore

than ever before, we will continue to supporl our numerous customers as they navigate the

turbulence of business tlirough all the possible survival strategies already mapped out.

We see the recapitalization exercise in the Microfinance Banking industry that will be concluded in
April 2022 as opportunity to take onr business 1o the next level. The new increased capital 

"villposition us to do more business for new and existing customers as a state Microfinance Bank. The
increased capacity of the Bank will also boost the confidence of our customers and partners in the
Bank.

Though we did not open new Branches during the year, we personalized our relationships with
existing customers. More than before, lve worked with some of them to restructure their businesses
in line with the reality of the new dispensation or "new normal". We also renewed and strengthened
our relationship with some of or:r local and international partners, especially, Development Bank of
Nigeria and Oikocredit International and lately Symbiotics. We strengthened our workforce in area

of strategic needs, especially 'Iraining, E-banking, Risk Management and Treasury operations.

At Infinity Microtjnance llanli l.inritcc[" \\,e ilre dcterruincd to rnake our rnobile banking solutious.
aka [nfinityNor,rNorv a housciroicl narne through rvhich our customers can transact regular banking
services on the go. Our novll're-jntrociuced Carcl Services ancl USSD Banking (*5353#) scllutions
have also been lelzrunclicd altcl iuitial chalicrngcs zrncl our E-channels departments have been intirsed
rvitli needed skills. Irr tl're ncw ycar' 2t)22. lnfinit1, Microfinauce Bank Limited *'ill be mal<e nen,

strides arnd introdtrcc more ncr.v proclucts and sen,ices that ale f-rntech based.

OPERATING RESULTS

Ladies and gentlemen, fello'ov shareholders, I am pleased to inform you that despite the hostile
business environment under rvhich rve operated in 2021, our Bank recorded positive results in
accordance with our tradition and trends in the past years. Our results showed that we are making
steady recovery from the perlbrmance dor,r'n slide recorded in the Covid-19 period.
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Our gross eaming recorded 30% increaseto 915,715,554 for the years ended 3l't December 2021

compared to 705J23,089 for the yea^r ended 3l't f ecember 2020. Likewise, the Total Assets grew

Uy it96 from a sum of 2,639,i14,709 for the year ended 3ls December 2020 compared to

3-,122,709,612 for the year ended 3l't December 2A21. Our Loan portfolio also grew from a total of
1,842,207,728 as at 31$ December 2020 to 2,114,742,517 as at 31" December 2021 hhercby

recording an increase of 75o/o. On the profitability index, our Profit Before tax increasedby 68%

from 1tg,113,764 as at 31d December 2020to200,641,889 as at 31't December 2021 while the

Profit After Tax increased by 73a/o from 107,1t3,764 as at 3lstDecember 2020 to 185,641,889 as at

3l't December202l.

The result posted this diffrcult year will not have been possible without exceptional commitment of
our management and staff and the unwavering support of customers. The quality of our people has

been the pitt* of our consistent growth and vibrancy. As we hopefully put the Pandemic and its

variants UitrinO in the year 2022, we shall continue to thrive by sticking to our culture of excellent

custome6ervice, respect for the customer and other stakeholders while keeping our operating costs

low by minimizing wastages.

In order to reward the support and confidence of the shareholders of our Bank, The Board of
Directors has recommended a dividend of 5 kobo per share for every 50 kobo share of Infinity
Microfinance Bank as at 3l't December 2020. To effect these changes a special resolution has been

proposed by the Board at the Annual General Meeting.

Finally, I thank my colleagues on the Board for unflinching commitment, dedication and invaluable

contributions during the year 2021.

Pastor Bimbd Josiah-Ajayi
Chairman, Board of Directors
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INFINITY MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED

DIRECTORS' RBPORT FOR TI{E YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

The Directors have the pleasure in presenting their reports on the affairs of Infinity Microfinance

Bank Limited ("the Microfinance Bank") together with the audited financial statements and auditor's

repoft for the year ended 3 1 Decernb er,2027 .

Legal X'orm and Principal Activity

The Bank was licensed by Central Bank of Nigeria on 23 October 2007 to operate microfinance

banking and provide microfinance services to customers through its Head Offrce and subsequently

aonroved cash centres.rr .!3

The Bank was incorporated on 09 Augr-rst 2007 as private company limited by shares and

commenced operations in Novernber 2007 .

The Microfinance Bank's plincipal activity is to carry on business as a microfinance bank, providing

financial service to micro, small ancl rnedium scale enterprises and other low income people in

Nigeria in the forrn of rvorking capital and loans. The Microfinance bank is eligible to accept

deposits from individuals, groups and private organizations and also raise finance in accordance with

the CBN regulations and guidelines on tnicro finance banks.

Directors Interest

The interest of tlie Directors in the issued share capital of the bar-rk is recorded in the register of

shareholdings as at 31 Decetnber 2021 as lbllorvs:

Number of ordinary shares held

Direct Holding Indirect Holding

Mr Gabriel Oludotun Adewunmi

Chief Godwin Okafor

Dr. Samson Amedu

Mr Jide Diya

Mr. Bimbo Josiah Ajayi

Mr Tope Oloniniyi

t,862,432

82,821,334

10



Operating results

The Microfinance Bank commenced operations immediately after being granted the license to

operate as a microfinance bank. Highlights of the Microfinance Bank's results for the year under

review are as follows:

Profit for the year

Provision for tax
e

Retained profit

1i



INF'INITY MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' IIESPONSIBILITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER,2021

In accordance with the provision of sections 334 and 335 of the Companies and Allied Matters Act

2020 as amended, Sections 24 and 28 of the Banks and Other Financial Institutions Act 1991 and the

CBN Regulatory and Supervisory Frar.ner.volk tbr Microfinance Banks, the Directors are responsible

for the preparation of annual financial statements which give a true and fair view of the state of

affairs of the Microfinance Bank and the profit ot'loss for the year.

These resftnsibilities include ensuring that;

Appropriate internal controls are established both to safeguard the assets of the Microfinance Bank

procedures are instituted to safeguard assels, prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

The Microfinance Bank keeps accounting records, which disclose with reasonable accuracy the

financial position of the Microfinance Bank and ensures that the financial statements compl,v *'ith

the requirements of the Statements of Accounting Standards applicable in Nigeria, Companies and

Allied Matters Act of Nigeria, Banks ancl Other Financial Institutions Act of Nigeria and the Central

Bank of Nigeria Regulatory and Supervisory Framework for Microfinance Banks.

The Microfinance Bank has used appropriate accounting policies, consistently applied and supported

by reasonable and pmdent judgments and estimates, and that all applicable accounting standards

have been follor,ved.

It is appropriate for the firiancial stirtements to be prepared on a going concem basis unless it is

presurned that the Microfinance bank will not continue in business.

Property, Plant & Equipment

Information relating to changes in Propertl,. Plant & Equipment is given in Note 9 to the financial

statements.
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Employment of disablcd pcrsons

The Microfinance Bank has no disabled persons in its ernployment.

However, applications for employment by disabled persons are always fully considered, bearing in

mind the respective aptitudes and abilities of the applicants concerned. In the event of members of

staff becoming disabled, every eflort will be made to ensure that their employment with the

Microfinance Bank continues and that appropriate training is arranged. It is the policy of the

Microfinance Bank that the training, career development and promotion of disabled persons should,

as far as possible, be identical rvith that of other employees.

Health, Stf.ty and Welfnrc :rt rvorlr

The Microfinance Bank maintains business premises desigried with a view to guaranteeing the safetl'

and healthy living conditions of its employees and customers alike. Employees are adequatell'

insured against occupational and other hazalds.

Employee involvcment and training

The Microfinance Bank policy with regarcls to employee involvement and training is to encourase

participation of employecs in arriving at decisions in respect of matters affecting their u,ell being.

Towards this end, the Microf-rnancc Ilank provides opportunities where employees deliberate on

issues affecting the Microfinance Bank and employee interests, with a view to making inputs to

decisions thereon. The Miclofinance Bank places a high premium on the development of its

manpower. Consequeutly, the Microfinance Bank sponsored its employees for various training

courses in the period under revio,v.

Auditors

Messrs Olu Aladejebi & Co. auditors to the bank, have indicated their willingness to continue in

r section 357 (2) of the Companies and Allied Matters Act,2020 asoffice, in accordance w

Company Secretary

By Order of the Board

8 F'ebruary 2022
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INFINITY MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CORPORATT] G OVERNANCE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECIIMI}ER, 2O2I

Introduction

The Board of Directors has commenced proper implementation of Corporate Governance principle

in the operations of Infirtity Microflrrance Ilank. l'he Directors have also endorsed compliance witli

the provision of the Miclofinance llnnk's code of Corporate Governance, which has incorporated

most of the provisions of the Central Bank of Nigelia (CBN) Code on Corporate Govemance for

Banks inftigeria.

The Board

The Board is composed of 8 rnembers. inclncling 1he Chairman.

The Board has four comurittees. 'fhese are the Credit Committee, Audit Committee, IT Steering

Committee, Board Governance and Nomination committee" In addition to the Board Committees

there are regular meetings by various Managcment Cornmittees.

Responsibility

The Board reviews corporate pelflormanoe, authorises and monitor strategic decisions whilst

ensuring regulatory compliance and saI-egr.rarding the interest of the shareholders. The Board is

committed to ensuring that the \4icrollnance Bank is managed in a manner that will fulfil the

shareholders aspirations and expectatiorl. The Board has provided leadership for achieving the

strategic objectives of the N4icrohnance Ilauk.

Specifically, the responsibilities of Infinity Miclot-rnance Bank Limited Board of Directors are:

'/ Determining the Microfinance Bank's objectives and strategies as well as plans to achieve

them;

'/ Determining the terms of ref-el'ence and procedures of the Board Committees, including

reviewing and approving the repofis of such committees where appropriate;

'/ Considering and approving the annual bLrdget, n-ronitoring performance, and ensuring that

Infinity Microl.rnance Bank is a going corlcern;

'/ Ensuring that effective risl< lnauager.nent process exists and is maintained;
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Board Audit
Committee

Board l.T.
Steering
Committee

Board
Nomination &
Governance
Committee

Board Credit
CommitteeS/N Directors Bo:l rd

Date Of Meetings 26-lan-2021
l3-Apr-2021
19-July-2021
20-Oct-2021

25-Jan-2021
12-Apr-2021
I 8-July-2021
22-Oct-2021

27-Jan-2021
l4-Apr-2021
20-Iuly'2021
25-Oct-2021

20-Jan:2Ql t

8-Apr-2021
1 5-July-202 1

l9-Oct-202 1

Number Of Meetings 4 4 4 4

1

N/A N/A N/A
[astor Bimbo Josiah .\iayi- 4

N/A N/A 4
4

4
Mr. Dotun Adewunlrti 4

4
n 1,. {)r r 't N/A N/A

4 4 4 N/A N/A
Dr. Samson Ameou

N/A 4 4

N/AMr. ToPe OloniniYi 4 n-/A

Mr. Olaiide DiYa 4 4 4 N/A

rs. Kehinde Olr'rbi 4 ,1 4 N/A

"1

,/ Retaining responsibility fbf systems of t-rnancial, operational and intemal control and

regulatory compliance, as well as ensuring that statutory reporting of these is adequate'

Chairman and Chief Executive

In rine with best practice and the provision of both the cBN and the Microfinance Bank codes of

corporate Governance, the responsibilities of the chairman and the Managing Director are

separated. while the chairrr-ran is responsible for the reaclership of the Board and creating the

conditions for overall Board ancr incliviclual Director's eff'ectiveness, the Managing Director is

responsible for the overail performance of the Microfi.rance Bank, including responsibilities for

ensuring dey to day uanagement atrd control'

Attendance of Boarcl lnd lloard Comurittce Mcetings

The Table below shows the Frequency of Meetings of the BoarclOf Directors and Board

Committees, as well as Metllbers' Attenclance For The Year Ended December 3l'2021'

The chairman is not a nrember. of any cornmittec in compliance with the cBN code which prohibits

the chairman of the Board liom being I tnember of any committee;

N/A -Not APPlicable

Standing Committees

The Board discharges its responsibilities through a nurnber of standing committees whose charter are

reviewed tiom time to time' The comuriitees gollsist of:

The Board Credit Contmittee

This Committee was set up to assist the

exercise due care, diligence and skill in

Board of Directors in the discharge of its responsibility to

overseeing, directirrg and reviewing the management of the

15
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credit portfolio of the Bank. The committee consider loan application above specified limits and

which has been approved by EXCO credit committee. It also serves as a catalyst for credit policy

changes going from EXCO credit committee to Boarcl for consideration. The committee also reviews

the loan porlfolio of the Bank.

S/N Names Status Designation Dates of Attendance

I Chief Godwin Okalor Non-Lxecutivc Director Chairman 20-Jan-202
8-Apr-202

l5-July-202
19-Oct-202

2 Mr, Tope Oloniniyi Non-llxccutive Dircctor Member 20-Jan-202
8-Apr-202

15-Jtly-202
19-Oct-202

Mr]Dotun Adewunnti Managing Director Member 20-Jan-202
8-Apr-202

l5-July-202
19-Oct-202

Committee's Terms of Ilel'erencc

./ To recommend criteria by which the Board of Directors can evaluate the

presented fiorn various cnstomers and review the credit portfolio of the Bank'

,/ To consider all credit facilities above Managenrent approval limit'

./ To establish and periodically review the Bank's credit portfolio in

organizational strategies, goals, aud perfbrnlance.

credit facilities

order to align

To make lecolnmenclations to the iloarci of Directors rvith respect to credit facilities based

upon perfollnance and olhe r fhctors as deemed zrppropriate.

To recommend to the Boarcl of Directors, as appropriate, new credit proposals, restructure

plans, and ameudmeuts to existing plans.

./ To report to the entire lloard at such tirnes as the Committee and Board shall determine, but

not less than everY qttarter.

,/ To perforrn such other cltrties ancl lesponsibilities as the Board of Directors may assign from

time to time.

./ To recommend non-perfbrming credits for write-off by the Board.

The Board Audit Comrnittcc

The Board Ar.rclit Cornmittee rvas set up to lr.u1her strengthen internal control in the Bank, in

compliance with Companies ancl Allied N4atters Act. CAP20. LFN 2O2O as amended. It assists the

Board of Directors i1 fulfrlling its audit responsibilities by ensuring that an effective systern of

financial and internal control is in place s'ithin the Vlicrofinance Bank.
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Status l)psioneti Dates of Attendance
S/N Names 26-Jan-2021

l3-Apr-2021
19-July-2021
20-Oct-2021

I tvtrs, t<ehinde OtuUi Non-lirectrl ive Di rcct,,lt'

2 Dr. Samson Amedu Non-Exectrtive D ircctor' Member 26-Jan-2021
13-Apr-2021
19-July-2021
20-Oct-2021

Non-F-recrrtive [)ilcctor' Member 26-Jan-2021
13-Apr-2021
19-July-2021
20-Oct-2021

3 Mr. Olajide DiYa

Committee's Tcrms of Ilel'crencc
q

./ To meet with the indepenclent Auditors, chief Financial ofhcer, Intemal Auditor and any other

Bank executive both individuaily anclior together. as the committee deems appropriate at such

timesastheComr-nitteeshalldctermitretodisctlss;

o the terms of engageruent for tlle inclepcnclent auditors, the scope of the audit' and the

procedllres to be usecl; the tlauk's qualterly ancl auclited annual financial statements' including

any related notes, the llank's specitic disclosules and discussion under "Managemeuts

control Report ancl the indepenclerlt truclitors' leport, in aclvance of publication;

o the perlor.rancc and resLllts ol tlir: exlernal irnd internal audits, including the independent

auditors' rnanagenlent iettel, and nranagenent,s IeSponSeS thereto;

o the effectiveness of the Bank's system of internal controls' including computerized

information systems arrcl security; any Iecomnrendations by the independent auditor and

internal auditor regaldir-rg internal control issues and any actions taken in response thereto;

and, the internal control cer:tihcution ancl attestation required to be made in connection with

the Bank's qtrarlerly aud atrtiual financial repotls;

./ To actively engage in a dialogue lvith the indepenclent auditors with respect to any disclosed

rerationships or services tliat may impact the objectivity and independence of the independent

auditors ancl to take appropriate action in response to the independent auditors' repofi to satisfy

itself of tl-re i.clependent zruclitors' independer-rce: to perioclically evaluate the independent

auditor,s qualifictrtions ancr, pertbrnrance inclrtding a review of the lead partner' taking into

account the opinion of managemetlt aud the internal auditor;

,/ To review critical accounti.g policies a,d tinancial statement presentation; to discuss with

management ancl the inclepenclent auditors significant ljnancial reporting issues and judgments

made i, preparertio, of tl-re llnar-rcial stater.nentsj including the effect of alternative accounting

methods;torevieu,irrajorclritrtg.esinirccor'tnlingpolicies'
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./ To reporl to the entire Board at such times as the Comrnittee shall determine.

The Board Nomination and Go't'erntlnce Cornrnittee

The Board Nornination ancl Governiurce Committee consider plans, budget, business models,

strategies and the ar.rdited accoLrnts of the Microfinance Bank. It also considers staff matters in

respect of seniol otflcers of the Miclofinzrnce Bank from Managels grade and above.

S/N Names Strtus Dcsignation Dates of Attendance

I Mr. Tope Oloniniyi Non-Executive Dilector Chainnan 27-Jan-202
l4-Apr-202
20-luly-202
25-Oct-202

2 Mr. Ebtun Adewunuri Ma.naging Dilector' Member 27-Jan-202
l4-Apr-202
20-July-202
25-Oct-202

3 Chief Godwin Okatbr Non-llxecutive Director Member 27-Jart-202
14-Apr-202
20-ltly-202
25-Oct-202

Committee's Terms of Referencc

,/ Review of all rnattcl's relating to staff welfare, including remllneration of staff, and Executive

Management;

./ Consideration o1'all large scale procuremelrt to be made by the Bank;

./ Review of contracts award fbr signilicant expenditures;

,/ Consideratiolt of prontotions of Senior N4atragement staff of the Bank; and

,/ Any other tnattcr that may be lefered to it by the Board.

The Board IT Stcering Cornmittcc

The Board IT comrnitree oversec the il' inll'astrr-rcture of the Bank and formulate policies that will

guarantee business contiuttity aucl availability of link among others.

S/N Names Stl tus Dcsisnzrtion Datcs of Attendance

I Mr. Olajide Diya N on-llxecutive D irector Chailrnan 25-Jan-202
12-Apr-202
I 8-July-202
22-acF202

2 Mrs. Kehinde OlLrbi trt on-Exec tt ti vc Di reclcl r Member 25-Jan-202
12-Apr-242
l8-July-202
22-Oct-202

3 Dr. Satnson Amedtt Non-Executive Direclor Menrber 25-Jan-202
12-Apr-202
l8-July-202
22-Oct-202
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lommittee's Terms ol Ret'ercnce

,/ Develop the short, medium and long term lT plans for the Bank.

,/ Ensure compliance rvitl-r regulatory staudards.

'/ Engineer the proper assin-rilation of thc Bank on IT backbone

trxecutive Committec (EXCO)

lhe Executive Comn-rittee (EXCO) is rnade up of the Managing Director as chairman and other top

nanagement staff of the N4icrofinance llank. 'I'he conrmittee meets regularly to deliberate and take

rolicy decision on the tnanagemcnt of the Microfinance Bank. It is primarily responsible for the

mplementation o1'strategies approvecl by the Boald and ensuring efficient deployment of Infinity

rlicrofi nfihce Banli' s resou rces.

vlanagement Comrn ittces

ihese are standing committees macle up of serrior management of the Infinity Microfinance Bank.

lhe committees ensure that policies b1' the [ioard ald tire regulatory bodies are complied with and

rlso provide inputs into the various Boarcl Cornnrittees in addition to ensuring the effective

mplementation of risk policies.

lhe management committees include; Managerlent Credit Committee, Asset and Liabilities

rlanagement Commitlees and Disciplinary Cornmittee.
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LI.J AL a

E-mail:aladejebi2000@yahoo.com olufemi'alad

INDEPENDENT AUDl'f OR'S RtrI'OItT

To the Members of Infinity N4icrofinance Batrk Limited

Report ftr the Financial Statenlents

we have audited the accotnpar-rying llnancial statements of Infinity Microfinance Bank

Limited ("the Microl-rnance Bank") u'hich comprise the statements of financial position as at

31 Decemb er,2021, the stltctnents olootrrprehensive income, changes in equity' statement of

cashflorvsforthe),ear.enclecl3lDecetnber,202l,SLIm[Iaryofsignificantaccountingpolicies

ancl other explanatory infolmatioll' ils set out on pages 22-67

Directors'Rcsponsibilityfbrtltelr.inatlcialSt..rtements

The Directors are responsible fbr trre preparatio' of fina,cial statements that gives a trtte aird

fair view in accordance rvith l,ter.ation*l Fin.ncial Reporting Sta,dards (IFRS) and in the

manner required by trre con-rp.nies anc.r Alliecl Matters Act of Nigeria, the Financial Reporting

Act, 201I, the Banks a^cl other Financial l.stitutio,s Act of Nigeria' supet'visory aird

Il'egrrlatory Frantetvol.k lbr lvlicrol..inarlr:e Banks in Nigeria. and relevant Central Bank cf

Nigeria circrlars, a*d lbr such ir-rter.Ilal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable

the preparatio' of i-rra.cizrr statements lrrat are rree from ,ralerial rnisstatement lvhether due 1o

fraud or error.

Auclito r's RcsPo ns ibilitY

o*r responsibirity is ro cxpress an opi*io, on trrese financial statements basecl on ollr audit'

we conducterJ our aurdit in arccorciance *,ith International Standards on Auditing' Those

standards reqtrire that rve compry *,ith etl^,ical requireme,ts and pran and perform the

audit to obtain reasonabre assui:ance rvhether the f-rnancial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An auclit i,vol'es per.forrni.g pr-ocedLrres 1., obtain audit evidence about th.- amounts ai-' -

cliscl0sr,rres in the l-rnanciai stiltenrellrs.'f'he proceclures selectecl clepend on the audit''

judgmerrt,irrcltrclirrgtheassessntctrtr.lltheris}:sofmaterialrrrisstatementofthet-rnanc
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statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those

considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation

financial statements in order to design audit procedures

t

assessments, the auditor

fair presentation of the

are appropriate in the

circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting

policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as

evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suffrcient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our audit opinion.

Opinione

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of Infinity

Microfinance BankLimited as at 31 December 2021, and of its financial performance and cash

flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and in

the manner required by the Companies and Allied Matters Act CAP C20 LFN 2020 as amended, the

Banks and Other Financial Institutions Act of Nigeria, Central Bank of Nigeria Regulatory and

Supervisory Framework for Microfinance Banks in Nigeria and relevant Central Bank of Nigeria

circular.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Compliance with the requirements of Schedule 6 of the Companies and Allied Matters Act CAP C20

LFN 2020 as amended.

In our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by Infinity Microfinance Bank Limited, so

far as appears from our examination of those books and the Company's Statement of Financial

Position and Statement of Comprehensive Income are in agreement with the books of accounts.

Contraventions

The bank did not contravene any section relating to Bank Loans during the financial year.

Related Party Transactions.

risk

and

that

There d party transactions

Olufe
FRC NO.: FRC/2013/ICAN/00000001813
Olu Aladejebi & Co.

(Chartered Accountants)
Lagos, Nigeria
8 February 2422
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INFINITY MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Loans and advances

Investment Securities :

- Available-for-sale securities
- Held to maturity securities
Other assets

Notes
4

5

2021
N

685,972,432
2,114,742,577

14,590,918

82,989,620
r16,660,395

2020
Ff

489,235,500
1,842,207,728

4,590,918
79,018,000

110,111,210

6

7

8

Property Plant and equipment 9 107,753,729 I 14,051,353

Total assets 3,122,709,612 2,639,214,709
Liabilities:
Deposit liabi$es
Deposit for shares

Current tax liabilities
Term loans

Other liabilities 128,956,959 81,671,200

l0 970,821,890

35,023,500
19,578,957

836,891,972

896,822,480
35,023,500
70,797,803

659,791,667

l1
t2
13

Total liabilities 1,99t,273,277 1,684,106,650

Net assets 1,131,436,335 955,108,059

Equity:
Share capital
Retained earnings

14 110,905,670 110,905,670

15 668,340,501 534,629,462
Otlrer reserves 16 352,190,164 309,572,928
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the Company 1,131,436,335 955,108,059

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors on ...........

Mr.O.Salami

Head of Account
FRC NO.: FRC/2021I002/00000023236

Managing Director/ CEO
FRC NO. : FRC/201 4/CIBN/000000 07 238

.!

Pastor Bimbo Josiah-Ajayi
Chairman

FRC NO. : FRC/2020/003/00000020435
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INFINITY MICROBINANCE BANK LIMITED

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BOR THE YEAR ENDBD 31 DECEMBER 2021

2021

N

2020

N

Interest income

Interest expense

Net interest income

Fee and commission income

Operating ir8ome

Impairment loss on financial assets

Additional ImPairemen(CBN)

Depreciation exPenses

Personnel expenses

Other operating exPenses

Profit before income tax

Provision For Tax

Profit for the Year

Other comprehensive income, net of income tax

Fair value gains/(losses) on available for sale

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

185,641,889 t01,113,164

185,641,889 107,113,764

l7

18

19

)ll

9ii

20

21

792,274,251

(139,51 1,958)

583,020,190

(72,245,926)

652,762,294

123,441,302

5r0,774,264

122,702,899

776,203,596

(16,555,975)

(26,597,000)

(36,785,397)

(307,884,781)

(187,738,555)

633,477,163

(23,395,019)

(29,455,494)

(304,567 ,7 54)

(156,945,132)

200,641,889

(15,000,000)

119,113,764

(12,000,000)

48.29

-arnings 

per share - basic (kobo)

The accompanying notes .fornt ctn inf egrol part of lhese consolidated financial statements'

23



INFINITY MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Cash flows from operating activities:
Profit for the period:

Tax expense

Profit after tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property and equipment

Other Adjustment
Impairment on financial assets

Rdiitional Ifipairment

Changes in assets/liabilities
Loans and advances

Available-for-sale securities

Held to maturity securities

Other Investments
Other assets

Deposit liabilities
Depost for shares

Current Tax Liabilities
Term loans

Other liabilities
Net cash (used in) / from operating activities before tax
Tax Paid

Net cash (used in) / from operating activities after tax
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of proper8 and equipment (16,507,979) (62,423,566)

Net cash (used in) / from investing activities (16,,507,979) (62,423,,566)

Cash flows from financing activities:

Other Reserves

Taxation Arrears

13,389,220

12,000,000

2021
N

200,641,889
(l5,o0o,ooo)
185,641,889

36,785,397
(25,757,669)
(16,555,975)

Q6,597,000)
153,516,641

(272,534,789)
(10,000,000)

(3,971,6-20)

(6,549,185)

73,999,410

8,781,154
177,100,305

47,285,759

167,627,675
(12,000,000)

155,627,675

2020
N

119,113,764

(12,000,000)

107,113,764

29,455,494

3,608,579
(23,395,0_19)

116,782,818

(439,207,283)

(807,000)

12,000,000

(50,231,215)
115,452,01r
35,023,500
(7,213,491)

512,319,444

35,218,427
329,337,211
(13,750,000)

315,587,211

42,617,236

15,000,000

Net cash (used in)/from financing activities 57,617,236 25,389,220

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 489,235,500

Cash and cash equivalents at end of vear 68519721432 489,235,500

24

196,736,932 278,552,866
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INFINITY MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

1.0 Reporting cntity

The Bank was licensed by Central Bank o1'Nigeria on 23 October 2OO7 to operate microfinance

banking and provide microfinance services to customers through its Head Off,rce and subsequently

approved cash centres.

The Bank was incorporated on 09 August 2007 as private company limited by shares and

commenced operations in November 2007.

The Microfinance Bauk's principal activity is to carry on business as a microfinance bank, providing

financial service to rnicro, small and medium scale enterprises and other low income people in

Nigeria in the form of working capital and loans. The Microfinance bank is eligible to accept

deposits from individuals, groups and private organizations and also raise finance in accordance with

the CBN regulations and guidelines on micr.o finance banks.

Basis of preparation

1.1 Statement of compliancc

The financial statements hal,e been plepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting

Standards (lFRSs, as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and adopted by

the Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria.

The Financial statements rvere authorized for issue by the dilectors on 8 February 2022.

1.2 tr'unctional and presentation currcncy

These financial statemetrts are presented in Nigerian Naira. r,vhich is the Bank's functional currency.

Except as otherwise indicatcd, financial information presented in Naira has been rounded to the

nearest naira.

1.3. Going concern

The Bank's management has macle all assessment of its ability to continue as a going concem and is

satisfied that it has the resources to continue in br.rsiness for the foreseeable future.
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Furthermore, management is not aware of any material uncerlainties that may cast significant doubt

upon the bank's ability to continue as a going concern. Therefore, the financial statements continue to

be prepared on the going concern basis.

1.4 New and revised IFRSs/IFRICs afl'ecting amounts reported and/or disclosures in these

financial statements

In the current year, the Bank has applied a number of amendments to IFRSs issued by the

International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) that are mandatorily effective for an accounting

period that b4ins on or after I January 2020.

i. IFRS 9 Financial Instrument

In July 2074, the IASB issued the final velsion of IFRSS Financial Instruments that replaces IAS39

Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and all previous versions of IFRS9. IFRS9

brings together all three aspects of tlie accor-rnting for the financial instruments project: classification

and measurement; impairmer-rt; and hedge accounting. IFRS9 is effective for annual periods

beginning on or after 1 January 2020, with early application permitted. Except for hedge accounting,

retrospective application is required, but providing comparative information is not compulsory. For

hedge accounting, the requirements are generally applied prospectively, with some limited

exceptions.

Classific:rtion and mcasurernent

IFRS 9 replaces tire multiple classif-rcation and rreasLrrernent models in IAS 39 with a single modei

that has only three classihcation categories: amortised cost, fair value through OCI and fair value

through profit or loss. It includes the guidance on accor.inting for and presentation of financial

liabilities and derecognition of f'rnancial instruments which was previously in IAS 39.

Furthermore, for non-derivative financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss, it

requires that the credit risk component of 1'air valr.re gains and losses be separated and included in

OCI rather than in thc income statement.

Impairment

IFRS 9 also requires that credit losses expr-'cted at the balance sheet date (rather than only losses

incurred in the year) on loAns, debt secr"u'ities and loan commitments not held at fair value through

profit or loss be reflected in impairment ailou'ances.
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Hedge accounting

The Bank does not expect any impact as a result of applying IFRS 9'

ii. IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts rvith Customers

In May 2ol4,the IASB issued IFRS 15 Reve rue from Contracts with Customers, effective for

periods beginning on 1 Januar y ZOxOwith earry adoption permitted. IFRS 15 defines principles

for recognising reventte and will be applicable to all contracts with customers'

However, i{prest a.cl t-ee income integr.al to financial instrume,ts and reases will continue to fall

outside the scope of IFRS i5 a'd will be regulated by the other applicable standards (e'g', IFRS 9'

and IFRS 16 Leases). Revenue.'cler IFIN 15 wi[ need to be recognised as goods and seryices are

transferred, to the extent that the transt'eror anticipates entitlement to goods and services' The

standard arso specifies a comprehensive set of disclosure requirements regarding the nature, extent

and timi,g as we, as any uncerlainty of revenue and the corresponding cash flows with customers'

2.0 Basis of measurcmcnt

These financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except those financial assets and

financialliabilitiesthathavebeetlnreasuredatfairvalue.

2,1 Use of cstimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in confotmity witli IFRSs requires management to make

judgments, estimares anci assumptions trrat affect trre application of policies and reported amounts of

assets and liabilities, incor,e ancl expenses. 'I'he estimates and associated ass*mptions are based on

historical experience ancl various other t'actors that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances, the results of which [or.,-r the basis of making the judgments about carrying values of

assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent frorn other sources. Actual results may differ frorn

these estimates.

The estimates ancl unclerlying assumptions are revielvecl on an ongoing basis' Revisions to

accounting estimates are rccognisccr i, tiie period in rvhicrr the estimate is revised, if the revision

affects onry trrat peliod, or in tl-re pcLiocl of rr-i.- rer,isio, and future periods, if the revision affects both

curtent and future Periods'
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Judgments made by management in the application of IFRSs that have significant effect on the

financial statements and estitnates rvith a significant risk of material adjustment are discussed in note

3.31

2.2 Chtnges in accounting policics

The Bank applied for the first tinie certirin standards and amendments, which are effective for annual

periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021. The Bank has not early adopted any standard,

interpretation or amendment that l-ras been issued but is not yet effective.

*
The nature and the efl'ect of these changes are disclosed below:

i. IFRS 9 Financi:rl instruurcnts

The following assessments have been made on the basis of the facts and circumstances that

existed at the date of initial application:

o The determiuatiou of the business model within which a financial asset is held.

o The designation of celtaiu investments in equity instruments not held for trading at

FVOCI.

If a risk free and gilt edged debt instrument had lou, credit risk at the date of initial application of
IFRS 9, then the Bank has assutned lhat crcclit risk on the asset had not increased significantly since

initial recognition.

Investments in financial assets are classifiec'l as either debt or equity investments in accordance with

IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation.

The Bank adopts the generai expectcd credit loss (ECL) model fbr loans and advances to customers,

other debt instruments ineasurecl at arnorlized cost. and debt instruments measured at fair value

through other comprehensive income. ECL model is not applied to equity instruments.

The Bank applies the siml,.lifiecl apploach in the recognition and measurement of impairment losses

on contract assets and tracle rcceivables tltat c'lo not contain a significant financing component.

The key changes to the Bauk's accounting policies resulting from its adoption of IFRS 9 are

summarized below:
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Classifications of financial asscts and tinancial liabilities

The Bank classifies its 1-rlancial assets as sr.rbsequently measured at either amortized cost or fair

value depending on the Bank's business rnodc:l for managing the financial assets and the contractual

cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.

The following summarizes the key changes:

o The held-to-rnaturity ancl at ailable-for-sale financial assets categories were removed.

A new asset category measued at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCD

was ifitroduced. This applies to debt instruments with contractual cash flow characteristics

that are solely payments of principal and interest and held in a business model whose

objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets.

A new asset category for non-traded equity investments measured at FVOCI was infroduced.

Derivatives embedded in contracts where the host is a finaucial asset in the scope of IFRS 9,

are never bifurcated. Instead, the whole hybrid instrument is assessed for classification.

Classification of financial liabilities remained largely unchanged for the Bank. Financial liabilities

continue to be meastued at eithcr arlortizecl cost or FVTPL. However, although under IAS 39 all fair

value changes of liabilities clesignatecl under the fair value option were recognized in income

statement, under IFRS 9 fair value changes are generally presented as follows:

o The amount of changes in the fair value that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of the

liability is presentcd jn OCI; and

o The remaining amount of change in the fair value is presented in income statement.

Impairment of tin:rnciirl asscts

IFRS 9 impairment requirements arc based ol1 an expected credit loss model, replacing the incurred

loss model under IAS 39. Key changes in rhe Bank's accounting policy for impairment of financial

assets are listed below.

The Bank applies a thrce-srage approaoir to measuring expected credit losses (ECL) on debt

instruments accounted for at arnofiized cost and FVOCI. Assets migrate through the following three

stages based on the change in credit qualitl' since initial recognition:

i. Stage 1: l2-months ECl,

For exposnres where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition

and that are not credit-impaireci upon originr.,rir-,n. the portion of the lifetime ECL associated with the

a

O
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probability of default events occurring rvithin the next 12 months is recognized. Interest revenue is

calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount.

ii. Stage 2: Lifetime ECL - not credit-irnpaired

For credit exposures whele thele has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition

but are not credit-impairecl, a lil'etirne tlCll is recognized. Intelest revenue is calculated by applying

the effective interest rate to the gross callying amouut.

iii.Stage 3{,ifetime ECL - credit'impaired

Financial assets are assessed as credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental

impact on the estimated future cash flows of that asset have occured. As this uses the same criteria

as under IAS 39, the Bank,s methodology for specific provisions remains unchanged. For financial

assets that have become credit- the effective interest rate to the amortized cost rather than the gross

carrying amount.

At each reporting date, the Bank assesses whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk

for financial assets since initial recognition by comparing the risk of default occurring over the

expected life between the reporting date and the date of initial recognition.

In determining whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Bank uses

its internal credit risk grading system, external risk ratings and forecast information to assess

deterioration in credit quality of a financial asset.

The Bank assesses whether tire creclit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly on an

individual or collective basis. For the pluposes of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial

assets are groLlped on the basis of sharetl creclit risk characteristics, taking into account instrument

type, credit risk ratings, date of initial recognition, remaining term to maturity, industry, geographical

location of the bort'orver and other reievant filctors'

The amount of ECL is nreasurcd as the probability-u,eighted present value of all cash shortfalls over

the expected life of the t-rnancial asset cliscounted at its original eiTective interest rate. The cash

shortfall is the difterence bctween all contractual cash t-lows that are due to the Bank and all the cash

flows that the Bank expects to receive. fhe amount of the loss is recognized using an allowance for

credit loss account.
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The Bank considers its historical loss experiencc and adjusts this for current observable data'

In addition, the Bank uses reasonable ancl supportable forecasts of future economic conditions

including experienced judgmenl to estimate the amount of an expected impairment loss'

Notes to the finnncial stltenrents

IFRS 9 introduces thc usc of' macroeconomic f'actors which include, but is not limited to,

unemployment, interest lates, gt'oss domestic product, inflation and cotnmercial property prices' and

requires an evaluation of both ttrre curl'en1 and forecast direction of the economic cycle. Incorporating

forward ldtiking inforilation increases thc level of juclgment as to how changes in these

macroeconornic factors w.ill atfect ECL. The methoclology ancl assumptions including any forecasts

of future economic conclitions are revioved regtrlarly'

If, in a subsequent period, credit quality improves and

increase in credit risk since origination, depending on

ECL bucket, the Bank would continue to monitor such

g0 days to confirm ifthe risk of default has decreased

from Lifetime ECL (Stage 2) to l}'months ECL (Stage

reverses any previously assessed significant

the stage of the lifetime 2 or stage 3 of the

finaneial assets for a probationary period of

sufficiently before upgrading such exposure

1).

In addition to the 90 clays probationary period above, the Bank also observes a furlher probationary

period of 90 days to r.rpgrade lrom slage 3 10 2.'fhis means a probationary period of 180 days will be

observed before upgradir-rg llniurcial assets fl'o[r Lifetirne ECL (Stage 3) to 12-months ECL

(Stage 1).

In the case of the nerv asset category lbr clcbt instruments measured at FVOCI, the measurement of

ECL is based on the threc-stagc approach as applied to fina[cial assets at amortized cost' The Bank

recognizes the impairrnenl. char.gc. in inconre statement. with the coresponding amount recognized in

other comprehensive incorne. with no recluction in the canying amount in the statement of financial

position.

overall, impairment uncler IFRS 9 r'csults in earlier recognition of credit losses than under IAS

39. For explanation of horv the Ilank applies ll-re in-rpairment requirements of IFRS 9, see Note 4

in the financial statemcnts
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2.3 Financial instrumcnts

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial

liability or equity instrun.ient of another entity. T'he Bank applied the classification and measurement

requirements for financial instruments uncler IIrRS 9 'Finctncial Instrunrcnts'for the year ended 31

December 2021. The 2020 comparative periocl was not restated, and the requirements under IAS 39

,Financial Instraments: Rccognilion ctncl Mectsurentent' were applied. The key changes are in the

classification and inrpairnrcnt rcqrtiremeuts.

2.3.1 Recognition :ud initinl rne*suremcnt
€-al

All financial assets a1cl liabilities are initially recognized on the trade date, i'e., the date that the Bank

becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The Bank uses trade date accounting

for regular way coutracts when rccording financial assets tlansactions'

A financial asset or llnancial Iiability is measurecl initially at fair value plus or minus, for an item not

at fair value through prolit or. loss. clirect ancl incremental transaction costs that are directly

attributable to its acquisition or issue. 'l'ransaction costs of financial assets and liabilities carried at

fair value through prolit or Ioss arrr expensecl in ir.rcome statement at initial recognition.

2.3.2 Classification of financi:tl instrumcnts

The Bank classifies its financinl assets under IFRS 9, into the following measurement categories:

o those to be measured a1 fail value either through other comprehensive income, or through

profit or loss; and

o those to be metrsured at amortized cost'

The classification dePends on the

financial assets and the contractual

principal and interest - SPPI test).

Bank,s business modei (i.e. business model test) for managing

terms of the financial assets cash flows (i.e. solely payments of

The Bank also classifres its financial liabilities as liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and

liabilities at amofiized cost. N4anagernent cletelmines the classification of the financial instruments at

initial recognition.
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Policy applicablc prior to I JanuarT'2021

The Bank classifies its financial assets in the following categories: loans and receivables and held to

maturity financial assets. Managc.ment deterrnines the classification of financial assets and liabilities

at the time of initial recognition and the classification is dependent on the nature and purpose of the

financial assets.

2.3.3 Subsequent mcasuremeuts

a. Financial assets - policS' applicatrle liorn 1 January

i. Debt instrtgtrents

The subsequent measuremcnt oi'linancial assets depends on its initial classification:

Amortized cost: A financial asset is measurecl at amofiized cost if it meets both of the following

conditions and is not clcsigrlated as at FVTPL:

o The asset is helcl rvithin a business model r,vhose objective is to hold assets to collect

contractual cash flows; and

o The contractual tenns of the t-rnar-rcial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are

solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

The gain or loss on a debt instnulenl that is subsecluently rneasured at amortized cost and is not part

of a hedging relationship is rccognized in incotne statement rvhen the asset is derecognized or

impaired. Interest ilcome fiom these financial assets is determined using the effective interest

method and reported in income statemeirt as 'ltlterest income'.

The amortized cost o1'a financial instrun-rent is defined as the amount at which it was measured at

initial recognition minus principal repayments. plus or minus the cumulative amortization using the

'effective interest method' of any ciifference betrveen that initial anrount and the maturity amount, and

minus any loss allowsnce. The el'lective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized

cost of a financial instnment (ol group of instruments) and of allocating the interest income or

expense over the relevant pelioil. 'fhc cffective interest rate is thc rate that exactly discounts

estimated future oash payn"rents or receipts over the expected life of the instrument or, when

appropriate, a shofier period, to the instrttnreut's net carrying amount.

Fair value through other cornprehensive income (FVOCI): lnvestment in debt instrument is measured

at FVOCI only if it mects both of the tbllou ing conditions and is not designated as at

FVTPL:
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. the asset i,t lteld within tr btrsiness motlel whose objective is ctchieved by both collecting

contracttral cctsh.flows crnd selling.financiol assets ; and

o the contrcrclttcrl tenns oJ'the fincutcial qsset give rise on specified dqtes to cash Jlows that are

solely pctyntents of-principal ctncJ interest on the principal ontount otttstanding.

The debt instrument is subsequently measured at tair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in

fair value are includecl in other comprehensive income within a separate component of equity.

Impairment gails or losses, interest reverrlre and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in

profit and loss. Upon disposal or derecognition, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in
4

OCI is reclassified frorn equity, to income statement ancl recognized in net gains on investment

securities while the cunrLriative impairment loss recognized in the oCI and accumulated in equity

wilt be reclassitrecl anci creclitecl to income statement. Interest income from these financial assets is

determined using the etlective interest method ancl recognized in income statement as 'Interest

income'.

The measurement of crcclit irnpairment is based on the three-stage expected credit loss model as

applied to financial assets at amortizecl cost. The expected credit loss model is described further

below:

o Fair value grrough profit or loss (FVTI'L): Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for

amorlized cost or FVOCI are measured at tair value through profit or loss. The gain or loss

arising from changes in lair value of a debt investment tliat is subsequently measured at fair

value thlor.rgh profir or loss ancl is rlot part of a hedging relationship is included directly in the

income staternclt ancl reportecl as 'Net gains/(losses) from financial instruments held for

trading in the pcriocl in rvhich it arises. Interest income from these financial assets is

recognizecl in income statctnent as 'Interest inconte''

ii Equify instruments

The Bank subseqnently rneasures all equity investments at f-air value. For equity investment that is

not held for trading, the llank may irrevocably elect to present subsequeut changes in fair value in

OCI. This election is rnade on an investment-bf investment basis. Where the Bank's management has

elected to present tair value gains and losses on equity investtnents in other comprehensive income,

there is no subsequclt rcclassit-rcation of lair value gains and losses to income statement'

Dividends from such invcstmenis conlinue ro be recognized in income statement as dividend income

when the company's r.ight to reccir,,e pa)'nlerlrs is established unless the dividend clearly represents a

fll
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recovery of part of the cclst of the investment. Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair

value through proht or loss are recognizecl in Net gains/ (losses) from financial instruments held for

trading.

All other financial assets arc classifiecl as measured at FVTPL. In addition, on initial recognition, the

Bank may irrevocably Cesignate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be

measured at amortizecl cost or at FVOCi as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces

an accounting misrnatch titat r'r'ould otherrvise arise.

2.3.4. Relasslflcatio ns

The Bank reclassif-res lliancial assets when and only when its business model for managing those

assets changes. The leclassification takes place frorn the start of the first reporting period following

the change. Sucl-r changes are cxpectecl to be very infrequettt and mttst be significant to the Bank's

operations.

When reclassification occurs, the Bank reclassifies all affected finanoial assets in accordance with the

new business model. I{eclassification is applied prospectively fron-r the 'reclassification date'.

Reclassification date is 'rhe first day of the first reporting period follorving the change in business

model. Gains, losses or interest previonsil, recognized ate not restated 'vvhen reclassification occurs.

Financial assets gre rrot reclassiflecl subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the period after

the Bank changes its Ltrsiness model fbr managing financiai assets that are debt instruments. A

change inthe objective o1-the Bank's business occurs only when the Bank either begins or ceases to

perform an activity tliat is signihcant to its operations (e.g., via acqtrisition or disposal of a business

line).

The following are t'rot considered to be changes in tlie business model:

o A change in intenlion relatcd to palticr-riar financial assets (even in circttmstances of

significant changes in ntarket condltions)

o A tempolarv clisappearalce of a pnilicular market for financial assets

o A transfer ol'Jlnancial asscts belween parts of the entity witli different business models

When reclassification oscurs, the Bank reclassifies all affected flnancial assets in accordance with the

new business moclcl. Reclassification is applied prospectively frorn the 'reclassification date'.

Reclassification clare is 'ttre lirst day' of the t-rrst reporting peliod lbllowing the cl-range in business

model. Gains, losses or inlerest pleviouslr ru'cognized are not restated'uvhen reclassification occurs.
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Financial liabilities are uot teclassified after initial classification'

Financial assets uncler the amor.tizecl cost classification (i.e. business model whose objective is to

collect the contract*al casrr flows) ca, stilr be held as such even when there are sales within the

portfolio as long as the sales are infiequent (even if significant in value) or insignificant in value both

individually and in aggregate (even if fi'equent)'

However, if more than an infreqtrent number of such sales are made out of a portfolio and those sales

are more tha. insig.ificalt in yarlue (eirher inclividually or in aggregate), the Bank will assess

whether and hor,v such sales are consistent with an objective of collecting contractual cash flows'
4

The Bank has defined tlie lollowing factors which will be consiclered in concluding on the

significance and freqr-tencl' of sale:

o Definition of Insignifie:rncc: Fol financial assets within the hold to collect (HTC) portfolio'

I,finity,s managernent considers the sale of assets withinthis portfolio as insigniflrcant if the

total sales constitute a value that is less than or equal to 20Yo of the current amortized cost

portfolio in a -vear'

o Definition of {n{requcnt: The Bank's definition of infrequent sale as it relates to financial

instnrmcnrs rvithin the I,ITC por.tfolio will be based on the nnmber of sales within a yeat'

Intinity,s rltallrgenrent has dccided that any sales not more than five times a year would be

considered as atl infrequc'tlt sale'

o Definition of Closeness to maturity: Infinity's management def-rnes close to maturity as

instrurnents rvirh less than llrree months to maturity.

2.3.5 Motlifications of iinancial assets rrnd financial liabilitics

i. Financial assets

If the tenns of a financial asset are moclified, the Bank evaluates rvhether the cash flows of the

modified asset are substantially clifferent. If the cash flows are sttbstantially different, then the

contractual rights 1o cash florvs from the origir-ral financial asset are deemed to have expired' In this

case, the original financiarl assct is clelecognized and a new financial asset is recognized at fair value'

Any difference betrveen the ainoflized cosi and the present value of the estimated future cash flows

of the modifiecl asset or consicleration received on clerecognition is recorded as a separate line item in

incomestatetrletrtsas,gainsanctlossesarisirrgtiorrrthede.recognitionoffinarrcialassetsmeasuredat

amortized cost'.
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If the cash flows of the n-rodified asset carried at amortized cost are not substantially different, then

the modification cloes not result in de-recognition of the financial asset. In this case, the Bank

recalculates the gross carrying arnount of trre financial asset as the present value of the renegotiated

or modifiecl contractual cash flolvs that are discounted at the financial asset's original effective

interest rate (or creclit-adjusted et'fective interest rate for purchased or originated credit-impaired

financiar assets). The amount arisi,g frorn adjusting the gross carrying amount is recognized as a

modification gain or loss itl inconte statement as part of impairment charge for the year'

In determining when a rnoclification to terms of a financial asset is substantial or not to the existing

terms, the Bank lvill consicler the following non-exhaustive criteria'

Qualitative critcriir

Scenarios where rnoclit-rcations could le ad to de-recognition of existing loan and recognition of a new

loan, i.e. substantial modillcation, etre:

o Extension of l'',nancial asset's tenor

c Recluction in repal"ment of principals and interest

o capitalizatiou of overdue. repayments into a new principal amouut

o Cha'ge i, frequenc), of lepayments i.e. change of monthly repayments to quarterly or yearly

rePaYments

o Reduction of financial asset's tenor

On occurrence of a*y of tlie above factors, the Bank will perforrn a 10% test (see below) to

determine tvhether or r10t the modillcation is substantial.

Scenarios where modilication lvill1ot leacl to de-recognition oiexisting financial assets are:

o Cha,ge in inter-est rate arising from a change in MPR which is the benchmark rate that drives

borrorving rates in Nige'ria

o Bulk repa)'mcrt of't-lrlanciai asset

Quantitative critcria

A modification ,vouicl lead to de-recognition of existing financial asset and recognition of a new

financial asset, i.e. substatrtial modification' if:

o The discountecl present value of the cash flows under

receiyecl net of any fees paid and discor,nted using the

the new terms, including anY

original effective interest rate,

fees

is at
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least 10 per ccnt diffelent from the discounted present value of the remaining cash flows of

the original f-urancial asset.

A modihcation woulcl not lead to de-r'ecognition of existing financial asset if:

o the discountecl present value of the cash flows under the ner,v tems, including any fees

received nct of any fees paid and cliscounted using the original effective interest rate, is less

than l0 per cent different from the discounted present value of the remaining cash flows of

the original llnancial asset.

If the telms of a finaricial asset are renegotiated or modified or an existing financial asset is replaced
4

with a ne\ r one due to financial clilficulties of the borrower, then an assessment is ntade of whether

the financial asset should be derecognized (see below) and ECL are measured as follows:

If the expectecl restructuring will not result in de-recognition of the existing asset, then the

expected cash florvs arising fi'om the modified financial asset are included in calculating the

cash shortlirlls ft'om the existing asset

If the expectcd restrucluring u,ill result in de-recognition of the existing asset, then the

expected lair value of the ncw asset is treated as the final cash flow fi'om the existing

financial assct at the time of its cle-recognition. This an-rount is included in calculating the

cash sl-rortfails fi'onr the existing financial asset that are discounted from the expected date of

de-recognititu to 1he reporling date using the original effective interest rate of the existing

financial asse1.

Modification gain or loss sliall be included as parl of impairment charge fbr each financial year.

ii X'inancial linbilities

The Bank dc-rccognizes a linancial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the

modified liabilitv are substantially diffelent. This occurs when the discounted present value of the

cash florvs tinder the nerv telms" including any fees paid net o1'any fees receil'ed and discounted

using the original el'1''cctir.e interest rnte, is at least 10 per cent difTerent fi'om the discounted present

value of the lenraining cash llorvs of the original financial liability. In this case, a new financial

liability based on tirc rnodifiecl tcrms is recognized at fair value. The difference betrveen the carrying

amount of the llnancial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is

recognized in income staternent" If an exchange of debt instrutnents or modification of terms is

accounted for as an extinguishment. an), costs or fees incurred are recogllized as part of the gain or

loss on the extinguishrnent. If the exchange or modif,rcatiou is not accounted for as an
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extinguishment (i.e. the modified liability is not substantially different), any costs or fees incurred

adjust the carrying amount of the liability and are amortized over the remaining term of the modified

liability

2.3.6 Impairment ol financial assets

a. Overvictv of thc IICL principles

The Bank reco*enizes allowance for expected credit losses for all loans attd other debt financial assets

not held at FVpL, together u,ith loan commitments and financial guarautee contracts, in this section

all refened to ars 'financial instrnments'. Equity instruments are not subject to impairment under

IFRS 9.

The ECL allorvance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset (the

lifetime expectecl crcclit loss or LTECL). unless there has been no significant increase in credit risk

since originatiol, in lvhich case, the allowance is based on the 12 months' expected credit loss

(12mECL) as outlinecl. The Bank's policies for determining if there has been a significant increase in

credit risk are set out in Note 4 in the pro-forma financial statements.

The 12mECL is the poflion of LTE,CLs that represent the ECLs that resr,rlt from default events on a

financial instrumenr tirat are possible 'nvithin the 12 months after the reporting date. Both LTECLs

and l2mECLs are calculatecl on either an individual basis or a collective basis. depending on the

nature of the ulderlyilg po(folio of financial instruments. The Bank's policy for grourping financial

assets measured on ir collective basis is explained in Note 4 in the frnancial statements.

Loss allorvances lbr accounts leceivable ale always measured at au amount equal to lifetime ECL.

The Bank has established a policy to perform an assessrnent, at the end of each reporting period, of

whether a financiai instrument's oredit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, by

considering the change in the risk of clefault occuning over the remaining life of the financial

instrument.

Based ol1 the above process, the Bank gt'oups its loaus into Stage 1, Stage 2, Stage 3 and FOCI, as

described belorv:

o Stage i: \\/he1 loals are first recognized, the Bank recognizes an allowance based

12mECLs. Stage 1 loans also include tacilities where the credit risk has irrproved and

loan has beetr reclassified from Sta-se l.

on

the
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o Stage 2: When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the

Bank records an allowance for the LTECLs. Stage 2 loans also include facilities, where the

credit risk has improved and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 3.

o Stage 3: Loans considered credit-impaired. The Bank records an allowance for the LTECLs.

o POCI: Purchased or originated credit impaired (POCD assets are financial assets that arc

credit impailed on initial recognition. POCI assets are recorded at fair value at original

recognition and interest income is subsequently recognized based on a credit adjusted EIR.

ECLs are onh, recognized or released to the extent that there is a subsequent change in the

expecftd creclit losses.

If, in a subsequent period, credit quality improves and rel,erses any previously assessed significant

increase in credit risi< since origination, depending on the stage of the lifetime 2 or stage 3 of the

ECL bucket, the Bar.rk rvould continue to rnonitor such financial assets for a probationary period of

90 days to confir'm if the risk of default has decreased sufficiently betbre upgrading such exposure

from Lifetime ECL (Stage 2) to l2-months ECL (Stage 1).

In addition to the 90 clays probationary period above, the Bank also observes a further probationary

period of 90 da5's to Lrpgrade fiom stage 3 to 2. This means a probationary period of 180 days will be

observed before upglading financial assets frorn Lifetime ECL (Stage 3) to 12-months ECL

(Stage 1).

For financial assets ior ivhich the Banl< has no reasonable expectations of recovering either the entire

outstanding antonnt. or a proportion thereofl, the gross cail\,ing amount of the {inancial asset is

reduced. This is considered a (partial) derecogriition of the financial asset.

b. The calculation of ECLs

The Bank calculatcs ijCls based on a three probability-rveighted scenarios to rneasure the expected

cash shortfalls. discounted at an approximation to the EIR. A cash shortfall is the diffelence between

the cash flor.vs that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the

entity expects to rcccive.

The mechanics of tite IICL calculations ale outlined below and the key elements are as follows:

e PD: The Probability of Default is an estirnate of the likelihood of default over a given time

irorizon. A delault nta1,onl,r,happen at a certain time over the assessed period, if the facility

has not bcerr previor,rsly' derccognized and is still in tlie portfolio.
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o EAD: 'fhe lixposure at Default is an estimate of the exposrtre at a future clefault date, taking

into account expected changes in the exposure after the leporting date, including repayments

of plincipal and interest, whether scheduled by contract or otherwise, expected draw downs

on committed facilities, and accrued interest from missed payments.

o LGD: The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default

occurs at a given time. It is based on the difference betrveen the contractual cash flows due

and those that tlie lender rvould expect to receive, including from the realization of any

collateral. It is usually expressed as a percentage of the EAD.

When estimati?g tire ECLs, the Bank considers three scenarios (a base case, an upside and

downside). Each of these is associated with different PDs, EADs and LGDs, as set out in Note 4 in
the financial statemcnts. When relevant, the assessment of multiple scenarios also incorporates how

defaulted loans at'e expected to be rccovered. including the probability that the loans will cure and

the value of collateral or the atnount that might be received for selling the asset.

Impairment losses ancl releases are accounted for and disclosed separately from rnodification losses

or gains that are accounted Ibr as an adjustrnent of the financial asset's gross carying value.

The mechanics of tlie ECL method are sllnmarized belolv:

o Stage 1:'l'hc l2mECL is calculatecl as the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that

result fiom def'ault events on a f-urancial instrument that ale possible within the 12 months

after the reporling date. l-he ilank calculates the l2niECL allowance based on the expectation

of a del'ault occurring ir-r thc l2 months follorving the reporting date, These expected 12-

month clclault probabiiities :iie applicd to a forecast EAD and multiplied by the expected

LGD and cliscounted by an approximation to the original EIR. This calculation is made for

each of the lbur scenarios, as explaineci above.

o Stage 2: Wirert a loan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the

Bank records an allowance ibr the LTECLs. The mechanics are similar to those explained

trbove. inclucling the use of rnultiple scenarios, but PDs and LGDs are estimatecl over the

Iifetimc of thc iustlutnent. 'J-he expected cash shortfalls ale discounted by an approximation

to the original EIR.

o Stage 3: F-or loans considererl credit-impailed, the Bank recognizes the lifetime expected

credit losscs tbr these loans. -l-he 
metl',od is similar to that 1br Stage ? assets, with the PD set

at 100%.

o POCI: POCI assets are llirur;ia1 rss:ts that are credit impaired on initial recognition, The

Bank only rccognizes the cLLinulltir e changes in lifetime ECLs since initial recognition,
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based on a probability-r,veighting of the three scenarios, cliscountecl by the cr.edit-adjusted

EIR.

c. Debt instrumcnts measurcd at tain value through OCI

The ECLs for debt iustruments measurecl at FVOCI do not reduce the carrying amount of these

financial assets in the statenrent of .ftnancial position, which remains at fair value. Instead, an amount

equal to the allo\l'zu-tce that would arise if the assets were lneasured at amortized cost is recognized in
OCI as an acculnulated impairment amolrnt, with a corresponding charge to profit or loss. The

accumulated lg;s lecognized in OCl is recl,cled to the profit ancl loss upon derecognition of the

assets.

d. Purch:rsed or originatcd credit inrpaireci financiar assets (pocI)
At each reporling date, the Banl< asscsses whether financial assets carried at amortizecl cost and debt

financial asscts carriecl at ITVOCI ali: creclit-irnpaired. A financial asset is 'credit impaired, r,vhen one

or more evetlts that have a detrimerttal itnpact on the estimated futtire cash flolvs of the financial

asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financiai asset is creciit-impaired includes the following observable data:

c Signillcant financial diff iculty of tlie boruower or issuer;

c A breach of'oontract sucit iis a ciefault or past due event;

o The restRtcturing ola loatr or :idvance by the Bank on telns that the Balk rvould not consider

otherwise;

o It is beconting probairie th:r1 the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial

reorgarrization; or

o The disappealance olan actir,.,:: market tbr a security because o1'financial difficulties.

A loan that ilas been renegoliated ciue to a deterioration in the borrower's condition is usually

considered to be crcdit-irnpaired unlcss lhere is evidence that the risk of not receiving contractual

cash florvs has redr.tccd significantly ii;rd thele are no other indicators of impairment.

For POCI llnancial assets, the llanl; cnl1, reco-gnizes the cumulative changes in LTECL since initial

recognition in the loss allowattce . Ltri:its that are more than 30 days ptrst due are consideled impaired.
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e. Collateral valuirtion

To mitigate its credit risks on l'rnancial assets, the Bank seeks to use collateral, where possible. The
collateral collles iu Various forms. st.ch as cash, landed properlies and vehicles.

The Bank's accourrting policy fol collateral

IFRS 9 is the same is it u,as under IAS 39.

Bank's statetlent of financial positior:.

assigned to it through its lending anangements under
Collateral, unless repossessed, is not recorded on the

However' the fair value of collateral affects the calculation of ECLs. It is ge,erally assessed, at a4
minimum' at inception and ,e-assessed on periodic basis as deemed necessary. To the extent
possible' the Ba,k uses acti,e market ciata for valuing financial assets held as collateral. other
financial assets rvhich do not have rcaciily determinable market values are valued using rnodels.
f. Collatcral reposscssed

The Bank's accounting poii$' tttlciei ]FRS 9 remains the same as it was uncler IAS 39. The Bank,s
policy is to dete.,inc whetircr * r-cPossessed asset can be best used fbr its inter.nal operations or
should be solcl' Assets detertninei'l io be r-iseful for the internal operations are transfer.red to their
relevant assct catego.y at the 1o*'ct' o1'their repossessed value or the carrying value of the original
secured asset' Asscts fbr u'iricil sr:liittg is cletermined to be a better optio, are transferred to assets
held for sale at their lair value (ii'tlna,cial assets) and fair value less cost to sell for non-financial
assets at the.epossessio, clatc i*. li*e rvith the Bank,s policy.

In its normal course of busiress. thr: llank does not physically repossess prope.ties or other assets in
its loan portfblio, but engages e.'iitmal agents to recover fu,ds, generalll, at auction, to settle
otttstanding debt' Any sut'plus lbii'-i,: are retumed to the customers/obligors. As a result of this
practice' the r-esidcntial propi-'r'lic:; ttilder lcgal repossession processes are not recorcled on the balance
sheet.

g. Forborne and motliliccl ir:*ns

The Bank sometitnes uraltes ccllccl*r;rr,s or,roclificatio,s to the original terms of loans as a response
to the borrowcr's flna,cial c'illrcrri,ics, t'.tlier than taking possessio, or to otherwise enforce
collection of co Ilateral.

The Bank cousiclers et loan fot'boiitc: ri'hen such concessions or modifications ar.e provided as a result
of the boLrott'er's present oI exDecilj.l flnancial difficulties and the Bank would not have agreed to
them if the borrorverhad br:cn liirri,:,lillY h,raltht,. Indicators of financial difficulties include defaults
on covellallts. or significant con.er';., r'lise rl lrv the Credit Risk Departrnent.

tl-t+
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Forbearance lnay involve extcnciiitg the payment arrangements and the agreement of new loan

conditions. Once the tertns have bccn lenegotiated, any impainnent is measured using the original

EIR as calor-rlated before thc modification of terrns. It is the Bank's policy to monitor forborne loans

to help ensllre that hrture pay,ments ct;ntinue to be likely to occur.

De-recognition decisions and classiilr:ation between Stage 2 and Stage 3

by-case basis. If these procedules ii:r,':r1ify a loss iu relation to a loan. it is
an impailed Stage 3 fbrbolne a.sse t lrilil it is collected or written off. This

are determined on a case-

disclosed and managed as

is explained in Note 2.1.5

above.

From I .ianuary 2020- r.vhen the ii-.:,n has been renegotiated or moclified but 1ot cle-recognised, the

Bank also reassesses wheti:el r.l:cii: itas been a significant increase in credit risk. The Bank also

considers rvhether the assets shouiri '5e cla:;sihed as Stage 3" Once an asset has been classified as

forborne, it will remain forbcrne f i I minimum 12-month probation period. in order for the loan to

be reclassilied out o1'the fol'l-,olne ciit,:gory, the customer has to meet all of the following criteria:

o All of its facilities ha:i to b,:,_',;risidered performing;

o The proLratiort period r'"*i1l;':::.i il'onr the date the forborne contract rvas considered performing

has passecl (see abovc);

Regular payments ol nlore tlu.n ;li ilsig,nlficant amount of principal or interest have been made

during at least half of the plol;ation iril'iocl;

. The customer does uol lrar,l: ,"iy c(rnlract that is more than 180 days past due. If modifications

are substantial. the loarl is r.i.',i:ceg1n17ed. Ii'the terms of a financial asset are renegotiated or

modified ol an existing, iillr,:i:ial as.ret is replaced with a new one due to llnancial difficulties

of the borrower. therr an .,ri,:r0sS]ncot is niade of whether the financial asset should be

derecognizecl and E{li- iir:c ir::riulrrod as follows:

. If the expected resLr'ri:iur;r:r: ,"iil not result in derecognition of the existing asset, then the

expectcd cash f'lorv:; lrris lir.l i , iln 1l1Lr modilled financial asset are inclgded in calculatilg cash

sholtlalis lj'om thc r;:;i:;tj:xl ,: ;i,ijL;

. If the expected resil'irci.ulii,q 1;iril1 t'esult i1 derecognition of the existilg asset, then the

expected fhil valur: ci'tt'ie .,::1i\.irSitet is treated as the frnal cash flow from the existing

llnancial asset etttl-ri: i,rit:.,':,r: ciel'e,:o,qnition. This arnount is included in calculatingthe cash

shortlirlls 1i'orn thc i:.!i:iil;'i: ,t,an:i:rl asset that are discountecl from tl-re expected date of
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delecognition to the i-cl-lortiit::i Cate using tlie original
financial asset.

effective interest rate of the existing

h' Prcscntation of allorvaxlcr {or li'.l;1, in the statcment of financial position
Loan allowances for ECL arc presciri';'d ir-r 1he statcment of financial position as follows:

o Financial assets tneasured ai i:ruortized cost: as a deduction frorn the gross carrying amount
ofthe assets;

o Debt itlstruments moasul'e{l rll IrvoCI: no loss allowance is recognized in the statement of
finar-rcial position bcciir_tse tli,.: ,-:an\.ing amount of these assets is their fair value. However, the
loss aliorr,'ance is clisr:losi:cj r:ir,-i is rer:ognizecl in the fair value r.eserve.

I. Writc-ofT

After a full evalr-ration of i: ntttt-r;r'''ii:rnrirrg exposllre, in the event that either one or all of the
following cortditiolls appl-Y' sttclt c:l :'.;ilre is recornmended for write-off (either parlially or in full):

o continued contact.,r'ilir tir*,.,,:, oinCl. is irnpcssible;

o [ecover)/ cost is exl;c;te11 io ;rr: iriglrcr than the outstanding debt;
o al.nount obtained liotn rcali:',tiion o1'credit collateral security leaves a balance of the debt; or

it is reasonably deteruritterl ii,r,t no fr-rrther lecovery on the facility is possible.

All credit facility rvrite-oIl! t'cqrii:''; encloi'sement by the Board Cr.edit ancl Risk Committee, as
defined by the Ba,k' Creciil'.rt'iie-ci'i';,pro'al is ciocurnented in r,vriting and properly initialed by the
Board Credit and Risk Cor.,:iiriltrc.

A write-ofI'coustittttes a cl':r'r-"c,Ji..,;. , ,li svs;,.i1. The rvlite-off amount is used to reduce the carrying
amount of the financial as:;i:1. []t,',',', ,.',.:l-, lirancial assets that are wr-itten off could still be subject to
enforcement actilzities in oi.,*r iil ' :1,1plr' :,vith tire Bank's proceclures for recovery of amount due.
whenever amoltnts al'!'rL'ci'' " ii:tl . . r'ret'iciLsly u'iitten-offcredit exposures, such amount recovered
is recognized as income on l; l:{i:;ii L_.,::,rii; or-ilr,.

4,0.1 Signilicant tccor.r xr ii i; s, pr.r l; .1,,_"

Significant accounting poll'-ri:.::; rti-r: ,::iler-l ris thcse that are reflective of significant jr.rdgements and
uncertainties, and potentiait-' 

'ri-,";r 1'r r ,o clil:elent lesults under difl-erent assumptions a,d conditions.

Ihe accounting policies sct i)lli i.:i ' ,la\. ,een e onsistently applied to all periods presented in these
flrnancial statements.

fhesepolicieshavebeetlt:,r.:;;;1;; ,, :,pji,'itoa|ycarspresentecl unlessotherrvisestated.



4.0.2 Intcrcst

Interest income and expensrj iirc rcc.rgnised in proiit or loss using tlie effective interest method.

The effective interc'st rate i:r thc ri,:i'.: lirat exactly ciiscounts the estirnated future cash payments and

receipts through the expeclr:ri lifi: o;'thc l'inancial asset or liability (or, where appropriate, a shorter

period) to the calrying atl('.i"rni ci'iilc tiriinciai asset or liability. When calculating the effective

interest rate, the Bank estir:-::tcs ir-r:,ri'o casl.. flor,r,s considering all contractual terms of the financial

instruments but not lutLrre cr,.:liii Io,;:.',::;.

The effective interest rate i:r '":lii:u'L;,:d on iriitial recognition of the financial asset and liability and is

not revised subfcQuently e:;,-:i:p1 :is :;.::i,;d beiow rcgarding impaired flnancial assets.

The calculation of the efIc..,,l.''i: ii''1,;;'i:;t ratc inclucles contractual fees paid or received transaction

costs, and discounts or pi'i'- ,: ts i i arc i,n integral part of the effective interest rate. Transaction

costs are inct'emeutal cosl:. r.riit a. " iiil'ectl1, attributable to the acqr.risition, issue or disposal of a

financial asset ol liability.

Interest income and e.xp.'t;'. - .-',r-'. . irliir-: stater:rcnt o1'comprehensive income include:

Interest on financial assc'.,,.,r;.1 . ,riiLie:;,'neas,,;rcd at amortised cost calculated on an effective

interest rate basis. Interes, .;.i [Ii;, ilibie-ir;i-salir iLrvestment securities calculated on an effective

interest basis

Once a firtancial asset ot'o::l;ll ,:r1",'r:.iiar llnancirri ussets have been written clown as a result of an

impairrnent loss, interest ii'''-t,:;ll ii, ri'1'ogr.rir4ed usinq lhe rate of interest used to discount the future

cash l'lows 1br the purposc , "rt'i1" '':.'ti:i impailrnelt loss.

Interest income and expensi: r,.r: ali :i:r:ciing assets ancl liabilities are considered to be incidental to the

Bank's trading operatiot-ls r:;;rl:rL',.: rii:sen1r,-d togr-'ther lvith all other changes in the fair value of
trading assets and liabiliti('.r ir i:,:t, ii',Ll i: rL)lt.r(-.

Fair valr.re chattges on oth':i' 'i i;'ri' I :::rs.' r rnd lir,bilities carried at f-air value through pr.ofit or loss,

are presented iu net trading 't)'.-rt)rrr ionr cLlrcr filiiiicial instruments and carried at fair value through

profit and loss in the statcn:.-,:i i.rir iti,::r1--,t'elte lsive i,.ionie .

4.0.3 Fccs ancl cornmis:ii, ,

Fees and comtnissious a; i,-,'i' ,'r'cc,l)illiseil o;1 6111 accrual basis when the service has been

provided.

Fees and commission ititr-,iric riri, :xi)eris-s thai ale integral to the effective interest rate on a

tlnancial assct ot'liabilitv ar'' 'lir:ii:: ,l i;, t t.' nleas,rrl'.Inent of the effective interest rate.



4.0.4 Nct tr:lcling inconu:

Net trading incoure courp., ._.sr

designated as lair valLre th:.oLrgh

profit or loss, and includes r.r1l

differences.

4.0.5 Dividcncls

Dividend incotne is .r.::r'' sitir '.-i rvir'.:ir tirc riglit to receive income is established.
Dividends on held fbr traiirirg ilii"trcial it:irjirts arc refle'cted as a component of net trading income,
while dividendfi'om otiret ;i.-;ricl:i1 insirr-,r:rents a, lirir value through profit a,d loss are recognized
as part of other operating inco:,c L';.lsed .u the undr:rlyi,g classificatio, of the equity investment.
Dividend inco,re on a'ailrbi .-ior-r*ile:r,.r1)r.,rities 

lire recognised as a compone,t of other operating
tnconle.

srii.s le:'s losses related to financiar assets held for trading or
1;r"cfit o. ioss as u,eil as financiar liabilities at fair value through

*illised rld urrearised fair value changes and foreign exchange

4,0.6 Incomc T:rx expcn:,,;

Income tax expense contpr.ise I crlir.ent iinti elefer.red

inprofit or loss except 1o tlre r)xlcli that it r.i:lates to
or directly in equity. In ti.r: crri, " thc [r:r is a]so

directly in eqLrity, respectivi:l :..

tax. Current tax and deferred tax are recognised
items recognised in other comprehensive income
recognised in other comprehensive income or

4.0.7 Current'fax

current tax is the expeclecl la:: r;r-''rble orr rrxable income for the vear determined in accordance withthe companies Inconte 1a:; 
"ict:CITzlr). ,rsing tax rates enactecl or substantively enacted at the

balance sheet clate, ancl an1'- :r;rir.rstnient to iii.x payable in respect of previous years.

Additional income taxes tlti;i arisc lrom ths distribution of dividends are recognised at the same time
as the liability to pay the rclalrcl clividenc! is r.ecognised.

4.0.8 Defcrred T'ax

Deferred tax is recognised i '; ict-ttpora;'r' r'riff'e.erces between the carrying amounts of assets andliabilities in the fina,cial i'ii:il-llttcrts ancJ Lhe co.r'esponding tax bases usecl in the computation of
taxable profit' Deferred talr is i;iovided lr. r-rsin-s the balance sheet or liability method. Defer"red tax
is not recog,ised for trrc rorio ', i.*-r ten-rprri.,rr-r.dirterences:

,/ I'he initial recognitir:;: iti.tt roclu,,iil:

'/ The initial teci-rstii:'r :i '.)'- assct-' or' linbilities in a transaction that is not a business
combination atlr-i tlil.' .-,'i':cls ueiilre r'.iccor-inting nor taxable profit or loss:
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,/ Differences relating to irtr,,estmenr.s in subsidiaries

reverse in the foresecabic f'.rture: and

to the extent that they probably will not

'/ Differences arising ii'cnt investmenl properly measured at fair value whose carrying amount
will be recovered litr-cuEh use Dcltrred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be

applied to the tempol-arv diflerencers when they reverse, based on laws that have been enacted

or substantively enlrted ij.i 1i1g rr:por"ting date.

A deferred tax asset is recc,:.ni:':c1 cnly to the extent tliat it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against u'hic1. 1lic r,sset ca:r be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each

reporting date4urd are rcclii:eil to the e,ttcnt that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit
will be realisec'l.

Deferred income tax asscts :rlir1 lilbilitie:; irrc offset when there is a legally enfbrceable right to offset
current tax assets againsl ')Ll)-l',:tti tax liairilities and when the deferrecl income taxes assets and
liabilities relate to incoinc 

"axcs 
levied b1' the same taxation authority on either the same taxable

entity or dilfcrent taxablc cl,iiies ';'here ilrei'e is an intention to settle the balances on a,et basis.

4,0.9 Cash and cash ccll:r.,.r::.,:ir.s

Cash and cash eqr-rivaletrts iu,.:lilri,.: notes."'nd coins in hand, unrestricted balances held with central
bank, opet'ating accoilnts \l'itir ball.ls anc'i highly liquicl financial assets with original maturities of
three months or less l'ro;n tilr rcctuisitiol clate, which are subject to insignihcant risk of changes in
their fair valtte , ancl are ttsc<: b} lh:: Banlt in the management of its shoft-term commitments.

Casli and oash cqtlivalenis , ,,-) :;i:' .i:d at ar::urtised cost in the statement of financial position.

4.10 Intangiblc asscr

Softrvarc

Software acquired bt'lhe l:ri:li' i:r starcii at cost less accumulated arnortisation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Expenditut'c on internalil'dc'',.liol;cd soli',are is recognised as an asset when the Bank is able to
demonstrate its intentioti ancJ :ii,lll;"y to coniplete the development and use the software in a manner
that will genct'ate ltttul'c ei:''irli,:ii:'oerLcllis. and can reliably measure the costs to complete the
development' The capitalis:c1 ,ri-,:jrLs oi ir:ternali.,'developed softu,ar.e include all costs directly
attributable to clcveloping 1ri- :,.;i:,,.,tire. ln,i ,tie antorlised over its uselirl lif-e.

Internally, cleYelopcd .qoiir,,:,,,, i Sirliiril :.i capitalisecl cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairrnent.
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Subsequent expenditure on software assets is capitalised only when it increases the future economic

:enefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is expensed as

ncurred.

{,mortisation

A.mortisation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of
,he software, from the date that it is available for use since this most closely reflects the expected

rattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset. The estimated useful

ife of software is five years.

\mortisation{rrethod, useful lives, and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and

rdj usted if appropriate.

De-recognition

\n item of intangible asset is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are

:xpected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated

s the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included

n profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised.

1.11 Provisions

)rovisions are liabilities that are uncertain in amount and timing. A provision is recognised if, as a

esult of a past event, the Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated

eliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the

rbligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate

hat reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks

pecific to the liability. The increase in provision due to passage of time is recognised in "Interest

:xpense'.

)rovisions recognised by the Bank relates to legal claim against it that are highly probable.

l.l2 Employee Benefits

ihort-term benefits

ihort-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as

he related service is provided.

\ liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus or profit-

haring plans if the Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result

rf past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.
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Post-employment benefits

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-omployment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed

contribution into a separate entity and has no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts.

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an employee benefit

expense in profit or loss in the period during which the employees have rendered service entitling

them to the contributions. Prepaid contibutions af,e recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash

refund or a reduction in future payments is available. Contributions to a defined contribution plan
.D

that is due more thar,12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the service

are discounted to their present value at the reporting date.

The Bank operates a funded defined contribution retirement benefit scheme for its employees under

the provisions of the Pension Reform Act 2004. Employees' and the Bank's contributions to the

scheme are 7.5Yo and 7.5% respectively of each employee's annual basic salary, transport and

housing allowances. Employees' contributions to the scheme are funded through payroll deductions

while obligations in respect of the Bank's contribution to the scheme are recognised as an expense in

the profit and loss account on an annual basis.

The Bank also operates a defined contribution insurance scheme. Employees are entitled to join the

scheme on confirmation of their employment. The employee and Bank contributions to the scheme

arc 5Yo and 12.5% respectively of the employee's arurual basic salary, transport and housing

allowance. Employees' contributions to the scheme are funded through payroll deductions while

obligations in respect of the Bank's contribution are charged to the profit and loss account.

4.13 Contingencies

Contingent asset

Contingent Asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be

confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occrurence of one or more uncertain future events not

wholly within the control of the entity.

A contingent assets is not recognised in the statement financial position but is disclosed when an

inflow of economic benefit is probable. When the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the

related asset is not a contingent and its recognition is appropriate.

Contingent assets are assessed continually to ensure that developments are appropriately reflected in

the financial statement.
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Contingent Liability

Contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be

confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not

wholly within the control of the entity; or a present obligation that arises from past events but is not

recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation; or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with

suffi cient reliability.

Contingent liability is disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying

economic ben&rt is remote. A provision for the part of the obligation for which an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits is probable is recognised, except in the extremely rare

circumstances where no reliable estimate can be made.

Contingent liabilities are assessed continually to determine whether an outflow of economic benefit

has become probable.

Commissions and fees charged for services rendered are recognised in the accounting period in

which the services were rendered.

Revenue is recognised on a straight line basis over the specif,red period.

4.14 Share capital and reserves

Share issue costs

Incremental costs directly attributable to the

initial measurement of the equity instruments.

of an equity instrument are deducted from the

Dividend on ordinary shares

Dividends on the Bank's ordinary shares are recognised in equity in the period in which they are paid

or, if earlier, approved by the Bank's shareholders.

Statutory Reserve

In compliance with regulations of the Central Bank of Nigeria, an appropriation of l5%o of profit

after tax is made if the statutory reserve is less than the paid-up share capital and l\oh of proht after

tax if the statutory reserue is greater than the paid up share capital. For the purposes of making this

appropriation, 'Profit for the year' as reported in the statement of comprehensive income is used. The

appropriation is reported in the statemenr of changes in equity.
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Regulatory risk reserve

In compliance with the Prudential Guidelines for Licensed Banks, the Bank assesses qualifying

financial assets using the guidance under the Prudential Guidelines. These apply objective and

subjective criteria towards providing for losses in risk assets. Assets are classed as performing or

non-performing. Non-performing assets are further classed as Substandard, Doubtful or Lost with
attendants provision as per the table below based on objective criteria.

Classification

Performing

Pass and Watc?

Substandard

Doubtful

Lost

Percentage

Provided

t%

5%

20%

50%

100%

A more accelerated provision may be done using the subjective criteria. A l% provision is taken on

all risk assets not specifically provisioned.

The results of the application of Prudential Guidelines and the impairment determined for these

assets under IFRS 9 are compared. Where the Prudential Guidelines provision is greater, the

difflerence is appropriated from Retained Earnings and included in a non-distributable reserve called

"Regulatory Risk Reserve". Where the IFRS 9 impairment is greater, no appropriation is made and

the amount of the IFRS 9 impairment is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

In subsequent periods, reversals or additional appropriations between the "Regulatory Risk Reserye"

and Retained Eamings to maintain total provisions at the levels expected by the Regulator.

4.15 Earnings per share

The Bank presents ordinary basic earnings per share for its ordinary shares. Basic earnings per share

are calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Bank by the

weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the

weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential

ordinary shares.
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4.16 Operational Risk Management

Capital management

Regulatory caPital

The central Bank of Nigeria sets and monitors capital requirements for all microfinance banks in

Nigeria. The central bank of Nigeria prescribes the minimum capital requirement for microfinance

banks operating within Nigeria.

In implementing current capital requirements, central Bank of Nigeria requires the Bank to maintain

a prescribed ratio of total capital to total risk-weighted assets.

*
Capital AdequacY Ratio

The capital adequacy ratio is the quotient of the capital base of the Bank and its risk weighted asset

base. In accordance with Central Bank of Nigeria regulations, a minimum ratio of 10% is to be

maintained.

December 2021 December 2020

NN
Tier I capital

Ordinary share capital

Retained earnings

Statutory reseryes

Share premium

Total qualiffing Tier 1 caPital (A)

Tier2 capital

Fair value reserve for available for sale

securities

Regulatory risk reserves

Total qualiffing Tier I caPital (B)

Total regulatory capital (C):(A+B)

Risk-weighted assets (D)

Capital Adequacy ratio (CAR) = (C/D)

110,905,670

668,340,501

273,389,786

3.448.652

1-056.084JD

75,351,726

75,351,726

110,905,670

534,629,462

250,184,550

3.448.652

8pJ68334

55,939,726

55,939,726

955,108,059

2,639,214,709

36%
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Use of estimates and judgments

The Bank's management, in collabor&tion with the Audit Committee is responsible for the

development, selection and disclosure of the Bank's critical accounting policies and estimates, and

the application of these policies and estirnates.

These disclosures supplement the commentary on furancial risk management.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Allowances for credit losses

Assets accountetP for at amortised cost are evaluated for impairment on a basis described in

accounting policy 3.15

The specific counterparty component of the total allowances for impairment applies to claims

evaluated individually for impairment and is based upon management's best estimate of the present

value of the cash flows that are expected to be received. In estimating these cash flows, management

makes judgments about a counter party's financial situation and the net realisable value of any

underlying collateral. Each impaired asset is assessed on its merits, and the workout strategy and

estimate of cash flows considered recoverable are independently approved by the Credit Committee.

Collectively assessed impairment allowances cover credit losses inherent in portfolios of loans with

similar economic characteristics when there is objective evidence to suggest that they contain

impaired loans, but the individuat impaired items cannot yet be identified. In assessing the need for

collective loan loss allowances, management considers factors such as credit quality, portfolio size,

concentrations, and economic factors. In order to estimate the required allowance, assumptions are

made to define the way interest losses are modeled and to determine the required input parameters,

based on historical experience and current economic conditions. The accuracy of the allowances

depends on how well these estimate of future cash flows for specific counterparty allowances and the

model assumptions and parameters used in deterrrining collective allowances are made.

4.17 Determining fair values

The determination of fair value for financial assets and liabilities for which there is no observable

market price requires the use of techniques as described in accounting policy 3.14 For financial

instruments that trade infrequently and have little price transparency, fair value is less objective, and

requires varying degrees of judgment depending on liquidity, concentration, uncertainty of market

factors, pricing assumptions and other risks affwtingthe specific instrument.
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4.18 Critical accounting judgments in apptying the Bank's accounting policies

Critical accounting judgments made in applying the Bank's accounting policies include:

,/ Valuation of financial instruments

The Bank's accounting policy on fair value measurements is discussed under note 3

The Bank measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the nature and

process used in making the measurements:

./ Level 1: Quoted market price (unadjusted) in an active market for an identical

instrument.

./ Levef2: Valuation techniques based on observable inputs, either directly (i.e., as prices) or

indirectly (i.e., derived from prices). This category includes instruments valued using: quoted

market prices in active markets for similar instruments; quoted prices for identical or similar

instruments in markets that are eonsidered less than active; or other valuation techniques

where all significant inputs are directly or indirectly observable from market data.

./ Level 3: Valuation techniques using inputs that are not based on observable market data i.e.

unobservable inputs. This category includes all instruments where the valuation technique

includes inputs not based on observable data and the unobservable inputs could have a

significant effect on the instrument's valuation. This category includes instruments that are

valued based on quoted prices for similar instruments where significant unobservable

adjustrments or assumptions are required to reflect differences between the instrument

The table below analyses financial

the end of the reporting period:

31December202l

Financial assets held for trading

Available for sale investment

31December2020

Financial assets held for trading

Available for sale investment

instruments measured at fair value into the fair value hierarchy at

Level I
N

14,590,918

4,590,918

Level2

N

Level3

N

Total

N

14,590,918
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4.19 X'inancial assets and liabilities classification

The Bank,s accounting policies provide scope for assets and liabilities to be designated on inception

into different accormting categories in certain circumstances:

Details of the Bank's classification of financial assets and liabitities are given in note 5,6,7 and 8

4.20 Depreciation and carryingvalue of property and equipment

The estimation of the useful lives of assets is based on management's judgment. Any material

adjustment to the estimated useful lives of items of property and equipment will have an impact on

the carrying value of these items.
c*

4.21 Determination of impairment of property and equipment, and intangible assets'

excluding goodwill

Management is required to make judgments concerning the cause, timing and amount of impairment.

In the identification of impairment indicators, management considers the impact of changes in

current competitive conditions, cost of capital, availability of funding, technological obsolescence,

discontinuance of services and other circumstances that could indicate that impairment exists. The

Bank applies the impairment assessment to its separate cash generating units. This requires

management to make significant judgments and estimates conceming the existence of impairment

indicators, separate cash generating units, remaining useful lives of assets, projected cash flows and

net realisable values. Management's judgment is also required when assessing whether a previously

recognised impairment loss should be reversed.

4.22 Geographicalsegments

The Company operates in one geographical region; Nigeria and does not have a secondary reporting

segment.
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INFINITY MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3I DECEMBER 2O2I

4 Cash and cash equivatents

Cash in hand

Current accounts rvith banks in Nigeria
Money market placernents

BALANCES HELD WITTT OTIIEII I}ANI(S
First Bank Plc
Wema Bank plc -Ojota
Cuaranty Trust Bank plc.-Lagos

Fidelity Bar{,plc.
I'olaris Bank .-Ikorodu
Zenith Bank plc.

First City Monument Bank plc.

Sterling Bank plc.

Keystone Bank pLc.
Access

UBA

PLACBMENTS
Wema Bank

First Bank PIc

Keystone Bank pLc
Zenith Bank plc

Loans and receivables
Stage l-12 Months ECL
Stage 2 - Life Time ECL Not Credited lrnpaired
Stage 3 - Non performing Loans
Gross Loans anrl Atlvances

Less Allowances for Impairement:
Stage l-12 Months ECL
Stage 2 - Lif'e Time ECL Not Credited Impaired
Stage 3 - Non perfornring Loans
TotalAlloryance

Nct Loans and Atlvances

13,735,556

270A75,432
401,76t.444
685,972.432

-
16,505,954

13,569,431

24,084,375

2,9E1,474

60,735
175,799,605

38,375

19,545,944

473,701

3,717,996

13,808.941

270,475,432

-' 100,000,000

94,000,000
194A77,874
23.283.570

40L,761.444

-
2,03 l,185,534

144107,E19

9,fit.206
2,I84,404.559

-
31,713,782

28,837,053

2021
Fi

9.1ll.206
69,662,01t

2,114,712,517

2021

N
53, I 06,066
16,555,97 5

69,662,041

31,713,782

28,837,053

9,111,206

69,662,041

s8

2020
i+

19,136,265

126,204,499

343,894,737

489,235.500

-

29,595,539

3,875,052
27,667,491

13,668,264

2,049,647

24,175,195

38,375
25,917,459

2 18,485

126,204.498

-

sq,ooo,0oo

236,838,769

23.055.968

343,894.737

- 
-

1,752,997,921

132,620,203

9,695.671
1,895,313.794

-
17,529,979

16,492,744

t9.083.342

53,106.066

-.

1,942,207,729

2020

t+

29,7n,047
23,395,0t9

17,529,979

16,492,744

19,083,342

53,106,066

5ii Movement of Loan Impairment
Balance b/f
Charge for the year

Impairment for the year

Breakdown of Movement
Stage l-12 Months ECL
Stage 2 - Life Time ECL Not Credited Impaired
Stage 3 - Non performing Loans -.

Total Allowance
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Loan by Type:
Micro loans and advauces

Small and nredium entetprise loans

Micro Lease Loan

Hire purchase

Stalf [oans

By Maturity profile:

Under I montlr

I to 3 months

3 to 6 lnonths

6 to 12 monffi
Over l2 months

Movement in loans and advances

Opening Net loans

Advances during the year -net

lmpairment during the Year

Net Loans and advances

Ar,ailable for sale financial assets

Equities

lmpairment

Held to maturity securities

Treasury bills
Less: specifi c allor'vance impairment

Other assets

Prepayments

Other receivables

202t
i+

1,704,135,556

474,015,325

4,074,809

1,709,236

469,632

2,184,404,559

982,330,457

556,890,363

400,954,448

150,631,329

93,597,962

2,184,404,559

202t

2020

N
756,951,370

I,131,069,512

1,962,836

4,405,819

924,258

1,895,313,795

800,700,259

481,254,918

386,067,819

139,372,888

87,917,910

1,995,313,795

2020

F+

1,895,3 13,794

289,090,765

2,184,404,559

N
1,432,711,492

462,602,302
1,895,313,794

2.184.404.559 1.895.313.794::

2021 2020

21,957,629
(7 ,366,7 l1)
t4,590,91 8

92,989,620 79,018,000

___q2,e8e,629_ ___2qq{99_

51,272,373 48,136,200

65,388,022 61,975,010

I 16,660,395 I l0,l I 1,2 l0

I 16,660,395 I 10, I I 1,2 l0

8i Prepayments
Prepaid Rent

Stock of ATM Cards

Inventories(others)

Prepaid Insurance

Others

I I,989,200
9,237,500

950,000

27,895,350

1,200,323

51,272,373

23,598,700
9,237,500

15,300,000
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INFINITY MICROFINANCE BANK LIN{ITED
NOTES TO THB FINANCIAL STATENIENTS
FOR THB YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2021
8ii Other Receivables

Int Rec'- Bless Group Loan
Int Rec'- DBN Loan
Int Rec'- DPA loan
Int Rec'- General Loan
Int Rec'- I Go Build Loan
Int Rec'- IDA Loan
Int Rec'- ISDA loan
Int Re#Lease Loan
Int Rec'- Salary Nownow Loan
Int Rec'- Staff Loan
OD int Rec- Current Acc
Cheque Receivable- Fidelity Bank
Int Rec'- Beta Loan
Others

N
l,lg7,gg7
6,442,900
7,792,212

29,956,797

2,762
12,590,389

6,909,272

3,068

241,436

11,045

227,979

19,075

3,402
65,388,022 61,975,010

N
488,390

5,928,292
7,809,910

37,733,049
4,730

6,545,939
512,977

3,068

240,779

7,310
l,l2g,g3l
|,571,7-.36
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I\FINITY MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED
\OTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

10 Deposit liabilities
Curent
Savings

Term

11 Taxation
Current iktx liabilities
Statement of Financial Position
Balance brought forward
Tax Provision for the year

Payment during the year
Balance carried forward

Income Statement
Income tax

l2 Term loans

Development Bank of Nigeria Plc.Fund
Oikocredit Ecumenical Development Cooperatives

13 Other liabilities
Account payable

Accrued oxpenses

Other accounts payable

14 Capital and reserves

Share capital
(a) Authorised:

Ordinary shares ofNl each

(b) Issued and fully paid -
221,811,340 Ordinary shares of 50k each.

Balance, beginning of the year

Balance, end of the year

62

128,956,959 8r,6',71,200

150,000,000 150,000,000

110,905,670 110,905,670

2020
N

77,141,231
546,923,662

10,797,803
15,000,000

18,011,294

8.800.000

19,578,957

25,797,803
(6,218,846)

461,666,667

375,225,305
836,891,972

16,189,146

148

112,767,404

26,811,294
(16,013,491)
10,797,803

12,000,000
12,000,000

236,291,667
423,500,000

659,791,667

6,208"512

564,319

74,898,370

110,905,670
1 10,905,670

110,905,670
I 10,905,670

15,000,000



INFINITY MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

15 RETAINED EARNINGS
Balance at I January

Opening adjustment restatement
Restated opening balance

Total comprehensive incotne for the yeal
Transfer"f,> statutory rese [ve
Transfer to RRR

I6 NOTE TO OTHER RESERVES
Share premium

Statutory reserve

Regulatory reserve

Total Equiq

Regulatory Risk Rerseve

As at I January Transfer fi'om retained earning
As at Decentber

17 Interest income
Interest on loans

Interest on deposit
Interest on current accounts

Total Interests Income.

1,020,530,665 844,202,389

75,351,726 55,939,726

75,351,726 55,939,726

525,315,849
185,641,889
(23,205,236)

2020
N

450,218,532
(9,313,614)

440,904,919
107,113,764
(13,389,2-20)

534,629,462

3,448,652
273,389,786

7 5,351,726
352,190,164

3,449,652
250,1 84,550

55,939,726

309,572,928

Tltis is a reserve that arose by comparing impairment of rish asset under IFRS and pr.ovisions
for the rislt asset using CBN prudential Cuideline. Where the impairment under IFRS is lower
than the provision anrount under Pruclential Guideline, the IFIIS impairrnent ligures is

recognizcd in the prolit or loss account. llorvever, the dilTerence befween the IFRS ilnpairment
and the prudential guiclcline provisioning are transl'erred fronr the distributable reserve to
non-distributable rcserve

771,518,804
19,863,017

892,431
792,274,251

570,043,527

11,634,202

7,342,461
583,020,190
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18 Interest Expense
Savings account
Fixed deposit account
LASMI Fund

BOI Fund

OIKO Fund

DBN Fund
Other accounts

Total interest expense

19 Fees and commission income
Comrnisffon and charges
Income from non financial services
Total fee and commission incorne

20 Personnel expenses
\\'ages and salaries

Contributions to defined contribution plans
Other statT costs

2l Other operating expenses
Directors' emoluments
Auditors' remuneration
Others

2021
F+

I ,497 ,715
30,591,217

1,284,932
166,667

58,688,096
35,148,997
12,144,444

139,511,958

123,294,442
146,960

123,441,302

275,499,346

6,123,942
26,262,593

307,994,791

4,020,000

l,go0,0o0
l gl,gl g,555

197,739,555

2020
|t
773,415

19,934,922
1,594,247

959,333
15,000,000

24,912,162
9,072,947

72,245,926

121,962,379

740,520
122,702,999

263,214,289

7,552,361

33,801,104
304,567,754

3,075,000
1,500,000

152,370,132
156,945,132
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INFINITY MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEI\{BER 2021

22 Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share at 3l December 2021 was based

on the profit attributable to ordinary shareholders and weighted average

number of ordinary shares outstanding calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

Issued ordinary shares at beginning ofthe year

Weighted '{l"rug" nutnber of ordinary shares at end of the year

Profit attributable to ordinary sharelrolders
Profit for the year attributable to equity holders

Earnings per shnre (kobo)

EJ\IPLOYEES
The average number of full tinre persons ernployed by the Bank during the

year \\'as as follorvs:
N{anagement staff
Sen ior staff
Junior staff

2021 2020

N

:)

l9
28

225

155

58

4t
l8

272

The number of employees of the Bank, other than directors, whose duties

rvere rvholly or mainly discharged in Nigeria, received emoluments

(excluding pension contributions and ceftain benefits/allowances) in the

following ranges:

Below Nlmilliom
Nt,000,001 - N1,500,000
Nr, s00,001 - N2,500,000
N2,500,001 - N3,500,000

24 Directors' Emolument
Remuneration paid to directors (excluding pension contributions and certain

benefits/allowances) of the Bank was as fbllows:

180

40

35

14

269

25

26

27

Litigntions and Claims
The Bank had no litigations and clairns during the year.

Contingent Liabilities and Cornmitnrents

There were no contingent assets and liabilities as at 3l December, 2021

Rclated Parties-Trrnsnctions rvith l(ey J\Innlgenrent Personnel

The Banks's key managentent personnel, and persons connected with them, are also considered to be related

parlies for disclosure purposes. The definition of key managentent includes close members of family of key

personnel and any entity over which key uranagement exercise control. The key management personnel have

been identified as the senior management staff and directors of the Bank. Close members of family are those

famity members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by that individual in their dealings with

Infinity Microfinance Bank. There were no transactions with key management personnel and their immediate

relatives during the year

I 10,905,670 I 10,905,670

I 10,905,670

221,81t,340 221,81t,340

185,641,889
83.69

107,113,764
48.29
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INFINITY MICROFINANCE BANK LIN{ITED
VALUE ADDED STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3T DECEMBER 2021

Gross interest income
Other income

Bought in materials and services

Interest expense

Other expenses

Value added

q
Distribution to employees
Employee cost

To government
Corporate income tax

To shareholders
Dii idend paid during the year

The future
Depreciation/ amortisation
Transfer to retained earnings and reserves
\-alue added

2021
N o/"

792,274,251
123,441,302

(139,511,958)
(221,577,9t7)
ss!,61;,679 t00

307,884,781

15,000,000

9,313,613

36,785,397

2020
N

583,020,190
122,702,899

(72,245,926)
(171,026,538)

462,450,625 100

56 304,567,754 65.96

o//o

12,000,000

9,313,614

29,455,494

2.59

2.0r

I 8s.64 1.889 107,113,764

7

33

6.37

23.t6
554,625,679 462,450,625 100100
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I\FI\ITY MICROFINANCE BANK LIIIIITED
FI\-E. YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECBMBER 2O2I

2021
-{ssets N
Ca.h and cash equivalents 6g5,972,432
F;iancial assets held for trading
Loans and advances
lnr estment Securities:

2,114,742,517

- Ar ailable-for-sale securities 14,590,91 g

- Held to maturity securities g2,9g9,620

116,660,395

107,753,729 I14,051,353

2020

i+

499,235,500

1,842,207,',129

4,5g0,gl g

79,019,000

110,111,210

2019

*
210,692,633

1,403,000,445

4,5g0,g l g

79,211,000

59,g7g,gg5

2018
ilI

197,657,925

1,126,356,999

5,242,340
78,211,000

78,560,979

2017

N
238,554,974

874,297,693

4,495,940

55,000,000

19,012.685

.346

Other Investments
Other assets

Intangible Asset
Property and eqXipment
Total assets

Liabilities:
Deposit liabilities
Current tax liabilities
Term loans

Other liabilities
Total liabilities
I{et essets

Equity:
Share capital
Retained earnings
Other reserves

Total equity attributable to
equity holders of the company

Gross earning
Profit before taxation
Taxation
Profit after taxation
Earnings per share

22,709 709

970,921,990 g96,g22,4g0

19,579,957 lo,7g7,go3
836,991,972 659,791,667

14,667 I

781,370,469 642,960,016 505,600.95_1
18,071,294

147,472,222
I 8,510,688 I 7, l,+2.91 S

164,249,567 112.224.567128.956,959 81,671,200 46,452,773 24,852,638 ::.ilr...r_

0.240.479 6 n .567.69_r

110,905,670
668,340,501

1 10,905,670

534,629,462
110,905,670
450,219,532

I 10,905,670

344,575,597
I 10,905.670

253,891.821
352,190,164 183.707 7 59,22t 770,202

1,131

915,715,554
200,641,999
(15,000,000)

I 85,641,999

84

705,723,099

119,113,764
(12,000,000)

107,113,764

48

709,991,673

l59,6gg,gg4
(13,750,000)

l45,g3g,gg4

66

585,234,276

123,779,539
(10,000,000)

113,779,539

5l

611,567,

523,695,600

133,336,9.19
(12,000,325)

121,336,624

54.70

IIIIIIIII
T
FI
Irr
I
I 67


